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CITY OF URBANA
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA
Program Title Number Number Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATIOI
Passed Through Ohio Department of Transportation
Airport Improvement Program 3-39-0080-1003 20,106 $47,727
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMEN1
Passed Through Ohio Department of Development
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program A-T-99-190-1 14.228 137,321
Community Development Block Grant/State's Program A-C-01-190-1 14.228 50,115
A-C-03-190-1 7,000
Total 57,115
Total Community Development Block Grant/State's Program 194,436
HOME Investment Partnerships Program A-C-01-190-2 14.239 43,744
A-C-03-190-2 3,000
Total HOME Investment Partnerships Program 46,744
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 241,180
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed Through the Office of the Ohio Attorney General
Crime Victim Assistance 2001VAGENN432 16.575 11,165
2004VAGENE591 4,455
Total Crime Victim Assistance 15,620
Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program 200-LE-LEB-3600 16.592 20,000
Direct Receipts
Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Grant N/A 16.607 2,121
2,500
Total Bullet Proof Vest Partnership Grant 4,621
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grant 1999SHWX0456 16.710 110,295
Total U.S. Department of Justice 150,536
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Receipts
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special Purpose Grants XP-97544601-0 66.606 82,635
Total Federal Assistance $522,078

The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule.



CITY OF URBANA
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the “Schedule”) summarizes activity of the
City’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Urbana
Champaign County
205 S. Main Street
Urbana, Ohio 43078

To the City Council:

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Urbana, Champaign County, (the City), as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2003 and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2004. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Library’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Governmental Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance
that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated June 24, 2004.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in
the internal control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a
condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving
the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, we noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that do not require
inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
June 24, 2004.

One First National Plaza / 130 W. Second St. / Suite 2040 / Dayton, OH 45402
Telephone: (937) 285-6677 (800) 443-9274 Fax: (937) 285-6688
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management and
Members of Council, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Tt atgomeny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

June 24, 2004
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

City of Urbana
Champaign County
205 S. Main Street
Urbana, Ohio 43078

To the City Council:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City of Urbana, Champaign County, (the City), with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133,
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December
31, 2003. The City’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
occurred with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are
applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

One First National Plaza / 130 W. Second St. / Suite 2040 / Dayton, OH 45402
Telephone: (937) 285-6677 (800) 443-9274 Fax: (937) 285-6688
www.auditor.state.oh.us
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Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(Continued)

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the
design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected
within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We
noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we noted a matter involving the internal control over federal compliance that
does not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
June 24, 2004.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditure

We have audited the financial statements of the City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004
and have issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2004. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of federal
awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, management, Members of
Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Tty Iwtgmsny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

June 24, 2004



CITY OF URBANA
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

(d)(1)(i) Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unqualified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control weakness No
conditions reported at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any other reportable control No
weakness conditions reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material non- No
compliance at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control No
weakness conditions reported for major
federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any other reportable internal No
control weakness conditions reported for
major federal programs?
(d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance Opinion | Unqualified
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under § No
.5107?
(d)(1)(vii) Major Programs (list): Community Development Block
Grant/State’s Program: CFDA
#14.228
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs Type A: > $ 300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes
2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS
None
3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS
None
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City of Urbana
205 S Main St.
Urbana, Ohio 43078

June 24, 2004 b
To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and the Citizens of the City of Urbana, Ohio

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Urbana, Ohio is hereby submitted for your
review. This report, although not legally required, represents the commitment the City of Urbana to submit
to nationally recognized standards of excellence in its financial reporting.

Management is responsible for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures. We believe that the data presented in this report is accurate in all
material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the City. Further, we believe that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City of Urbana's activities have been included.

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report incorporates financial reporting standards established by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34- Basic Financial Statements and
Management's Discussion & Analysis for State and Local Governments. Statement 34 was developed to
make annual financial reports of governments more comprehensive and easier to understand and use.
Except for the requirement to retroactively report general infrastructure assets, this report incorporates all
required elements of Statement 34. Retroactive restatement of general infrastructure assets is not required
until the report for the year ending December 31, 2007; however, management intends to comply with this
requirement in advance of the due date.

The accompanying report consists of three major sections:

1. Introductory Section

As the title indicates, this section introduces the reader to the report and includes this
transmittal letter, a listing of City officials and a City organizational chart.

2. Financial Section

The Financial Section of the report is structured in the form of a financial "reporting pyramid"
beginning with broad-based financial data followed by more specific financial data. The
financial section includes the report of the independent auditors, the Management Discussion
and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements including the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements, and Required Supplementary Information. The remainder of the Financial Section
presents more specific combining statements of individual funds and schedules.

3. Statistical Section

The Statistical Section includes a number of tables of unaudited data depicting the financial
history of the City for the past ten years plus demographic data and other miscellaneous
information.

This transmittal letter is designed to complement the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).
The MD&A provides users of the basic financial statements with a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis of the financial statements, and should be read in conjunction with the transmittal letter. The City
of Urbana's MD&A can be found in the Financial Section of the report immediately following the Auditors
Report.



GENERAL INFORMATION

Urbana covers approximately six square miles, with a population of 11,613 (2000 U.S. Census). Urbana is
located 15 miles north of Springfield and has several nationally- known companies such as Honeywell,
Sieman Allis, and most recent addition in 1999 of Rittal. The prominent landmark and commonly used
reference point of the City is "The Man on the Monument" or "Monument Square" located at the heart of
downtown at the intersection of U.S. Route 68 (north & south) and U.S. Route 36 (east and west). The Man
on the Monument is a casting of a Union Cavalryman and was placed in the square in 1871.

MUNICIPAL SERVICES AND FACILITIES
The City of Urbana provides a full range of basic municipal services including police and fire protection,
ambulance services, parks, recreation, street maintenance, zoning, economic and community development,
cemetery, water, sewer, airport and general government support.

The City of Urbana designed the following mission statement: "The City of Urbana employees are
committed to provide a superior quality and cost effective service that meets the needs of the community
and promotes the feeling of security and safety." Each division has prepared key strategies that will help the
City employees and officials achieve the City's mission. Several of the goals mentioned in the "Major
Projects" and "Outlook" section support these strategies. In support of Total Quality Management, the City
is continually improving the efforts to meet our mission statement.

GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION
The municipal government provided by the Urbana Charter is best described as the "mayor-administrator-
council" form of government and applies to the residents of the City.

This form of home rule was recommended by the Urbana Charter Commission in 1977, and subsequently
approved by City voters. It provides a great measure of administrative and legislative control and
efficiencies while maintaining direct participation by the residents of the community.

The City Charter continues to have widespread support among the city electorate. At the beginning of
2000, Council appointed a 12-member Charter Review Committee to conduct a scheduled and charter-
mandated review of the governing document. Later that year, the committee submitted seven minor
changes which were placed on the May ballot. Six of the seven proposed changes were approved by a
majority of voters.

Under the Urbana Charter form of government, nine persons are elected to office: the Mayor, seven
members of City Council and the President of City Council. All other members of the governing and
advisory structure are appointed.

The Mayor is elected to a four-year term as the chief executive officer of the City. She appoints the
Directors of Administration, Finance, and Law, as well as members of most City boards, commissions, and
committees. The Mayor is responsible for all aspects of City government and is the ceremonial
representative of the City. She may veto actions of City Council.

In general terms, the Urbana government structure can be compared to the federal or state structures. There
is an executive branch, the Mayor and her appointees, which oversees the day-to-day working of the City;
the legislative branch, the City Council, which drafts, submits, and approves laws by which the City is
governed; and the judicial branch, the Municipal Court, which administers City and state laws.



DEPARTMENTAL HIGHLIGHT
The Urbana Fire Division became a career department in 1878. At present, there are 20
firefighter/paramedics and five officers. The division’s territory consists of the City of Urbana and portions
of five townships with a total area of 100 square miles and 25,000 residents. The run volume averages
1500 paramedic and 450 fire runs annually. Because of the fire division’s continuous improvement
programs, the City has an ISO rating of Class 4. The division supplies a full complement of services for the
residents that consists of paramedic squads, Haz Mat response, confined space and high angle rescue, child
and adult safety programs and an active fire inspection and prevention program. The division is fully
equipped with three pumpers, quint, grass truck, tanker, haz mat truck and two command vehicles. The
division is under the direction of Chief Jim McIntosh who has been with the fire division for thirty years
and the chief for thirteen years. “Our Mission is to Save and Protect the Lives, Property and Environment
of Our Community to the Best of Our Ability.”

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK
Grimes Field is the legacy of Warren Grimes, Urbana’s premier entrepreneur and “Father of the Aircraft
Lighting Industry.” At the age of 15, Grimes ran away from his orphanage home in Tiffin, Ohio, to live
with his brother Frank in Detroit to work for Ford. Eventually he left Ford to become a partner in an
electrical business, designing lighting fixtures. Impressed with Grimes’ work, Henry Ford approached him
in the mid 1920s to design new lights for Ford and Tri-Motors. 48 hours after the request, Grimes produced
the light Ford wanted and “the rest is history.” In 1930, Grimes returned to Urbana with a plan to market
his design to Waco Aircraft in Troy, Ohio. Waco found his lights to be superior, as did many other
companies, and from 1932 to 1942 Grimes’ company grew from 20 employees to 1300.

In the1930’s Mr. Grimes purchased the Johnson Farm just north of Urbana. On August 8, 1943, opening
ceremonies were held in front of a large crowd and Mr. Grimes presented Grimes Field to the City of
Urbana. Grimes has changed several times and is currently Honeywell Incorporated and accounts for
approximately 20% of the City's income tax. Fortunately, several small industries over the years have
complemented the tax receipts.

A twenty-year history of income tax reflect strong average increase of 7.75% with only three years of
decline. The declines occurred in 1994 with the loss of the second largest employer, Drackett, and the slow
economy of 2001and 2002. The City was fortunate to attract Rittal, who now operates the facility vacated
by Drackett.

City of Urbana's Income Tax
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Economic Environment Today
As mentioned previously, Grimes Honeywell is a major part of Urbana, however we are fortunate to have
several small stable additional industries to support Urbana. Siemen-Allis, Rittal, Menahsa, Fox River
Paper, Q3 and RT Bundy are the key local industries. Honda of America in Marysville, KTH in St. Paris,
and TruTech north of Urbana are industries outside Urbana that employ our residents.

The Champaign County Chamber of Commerce and the Ohio State Economic Development Department
are continuously researching to attract new industries to our industrial area on the south edge of town and
our airport that can be a strong tool in attracting the new employer.

2003 Economic Activity and Outlook
Income Tax receipts, the largest single source of revenues, were up 3.7% in 2003, after two years of lower
collections. The City struggled with cut backs in services for 2003 to balance the budget. The small
increases in income taxes and increased health care helped the City finances in 2003 to a cash operating
surplus of $127,000. Unfortunately, the weak national and local economy continued into 2003, the interest
revenues were dramatically lower was an issue facing the City. In addition, the State of Ohio is reducing or
limiting growth of revenues the citys in Ohio receive. One of the goals of the City must be to rebuild a
comfortable General Fund reserve even with this difficult economy.

The Water Fund purchased a new well field early in 2004 to address the water quality issue. One factor in
favor of Urbana is the Water and Sewer rates are one of the lowest in the Miami Valley of West Central
Ohio.

Several projects were completed and several are planned with the cooperative efforts of the Champaign
County offices and City Urbana offices. The new cooperative approach to common problems is providing
both entities new and exciting methods to provide our citizens the necessary services. The project that is on
going is the Emergency 9-1-1 dispatch center that is expected to handle fire, emergency medical, Police
and Sheriff dispatching for the entire county. In the next few months the City and County should finally
meet this goal and provide the County residents an improved 9-1-1 emergency system.

Major Initiatives
The City of Urbana has four major projects progressing through 2003 and into 2004. The first project is the
City of Urbana water supply. The current level of volatile organic compounds is far below the drinking
water standards; however, the monitoring wells installed in 1996 for wellhead protection indicates levels
above the standard. The City, Bennett & Williams (Engineers), and the Ohio Environmental Protection
Agency have combined effort to make plans to resolve the issue and found the alternative well field sites.
The property was purchased and contract were sign to begin installation of a new well field. In conjunction
with locating the well field, Honeywell has agreed to install a Granulated Active Charcoal System at the
existing well to substantially remove the volatile organic compounds and that projection will begin in
April.

The second project is the City and Champaign County began searching for a consultant that will be paid
with grant money. The consultant will review the 9-1-1 plan and the entities hope to begin a joint venture to
better serve our citizens with emergency dispatch 9-1-1.

The third project is in the early stages as the City is researching financial grants and resources to
reconstruct East Water Street. The Project is estimated at $2.2 million so, the City will need significant
supporting resources to make the project a reality in the next few years.

Finally, the City and Champaign County are jointly pressing the State to get funding for a Route 68 by-
pass.



ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL
The Finance Department is responsible for providing all City financial services including financial
accounting and reporting, payroll, accounts payable, disbursement functions, cash and investment
management, debt management, budgeting, purchasing, contract administration, utility customer services,
income tax administration, and special financial and policy analysis for City management. The Director of
Finance supervises the department's operations.

The City utilizes a computerized financial accounting system which includes a system of internal
accounting controls. Such controls have been designed and are continually being re-evaluated to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding:

1. The safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition.

2. The reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining
accountability of assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that:
1. The cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and
2. The evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgment by management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework, and controls are believed to adequately
safeguard assets and to provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary control is maintained by the adoption of an annual appropriation ordinance and amendments
thereto. The annual budget is proposed by the Mayor and enacted by the City Council after public
discussion. Prior to the issuance of purchase orders, a corresponding amount of appropriations is reserved
by the use of encumbrances for later payment to assure that appropriations will not be overspent. A more
detailed explanation of budgetary control is provided in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City protects itself from liabilities that arise from unforeseen events through a variety of insurance
policies. Outside contractors are required to carry liability coverage while undertaking and completing
projects for the City.

The City carries comprehensive vehicle insurance to cover fifty vehicles that are commonly operated on
public roadways. The policy coverage provides up to $250,000 for each individual injury or $500,000 for
each occurrence and up to $100,000 for property damage, and it includes underinsured or uninsured
motorist coverage. All other self-propelled equipment such as mowers and front-end loaders are insured
through the City's comprehensive business policy.

The comprehensive business policy provides more than $17 million of building and property protection as
well as $500,000 of general liability coverage. Both the public official liability and the police officials
liability insurance policies provide up to $1 million coverage per incident and annual aggregate.

The City employees health insurance remains a major financial issue each year. However with the labor
contracts now requiring 10% employee contribution and the creation of an employee health insurance
committee the renewal in 2003 was minimal and in 2004 only 4%.



CASH MANAGEMENT

The City of Urbana pools all available cash for maximum investment efficiency and return. All interest
from the general pool of City funds is credited to the General Fund. In compliance with Chapter 133 of the
Codified Ordinances of the City of Urbana, the investment of proceeds from the gas system sale are
invested, and 100 percent of the interest is credited to the General Fund as long as the Supplemental
Investment Fund maintains a balance greater than $150,000. The majority of investments are timed
Certificates of Deposit.

Bequests made to the Cemetery Trust Principal Fund must remain permanently in the City's possession.

The interest earned can be used for the maintenance of Oak Dale Cemetery, and is credited to the Cemetery
Trust Income Fund.

Interest Earnings

General Fund $212,782
Community Development Block Grant Fund 1,804
Supplemental Investment Fund 8,567
Oak Dale Cemetery Trust Income Trust Fund 1,428
Capital Project Fund (Municipal Court Ordered) 3,666
Total $228,247
INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in the financial section is the auditors' opinion, which is a significant part of the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report. The financial statements have received an "unqualified opinion" from Betty
Montgomery, Auditor of State of Ohio indicating that the general purpose financial statements are
presented fairly and in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Auditor of State
Betty Montgomery

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

City of Urbana
Champaign County
205 S. Main Street
Urbana, Ohio 43078

To the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Urbana,
Champaign County, (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of December 31, 2003, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2004,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this
report in considering the results of our audit.

One First National Plaza / 130 W. Second St. / Suite 2040 / Dayton, OH 45402
Telephone: (937) 285-6677 (800) 443-9274 Fax: (937) 285-6688
www.auditor.state.oh.us




City of Urbana

Champaign County

Independent Accountants’ Report
Page 2

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison for the General Fund and the major
Special Revenue Police and Fire Income Tax Fund are not a required part of the basic financial
statements but are supplementary information the Governmental Accounting Standards Board requires.
We have applied certain limited procedures, consisting principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

We conducted our audit to form opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund statements
and schedules and statistical tables are presented for additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. We subjected the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, this
information is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. We did not subject the introductory section and statistical tables to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Tty Iwtgmsny

Betty Montgomery
Auditor of State

June 24, 2004
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
The management of the City of Urbana provides the following information as an introduction, overview,
and analysis of the City's financial statements for the year ended December 31,2003.

Please read this analysis in conjunction with the City's basic financial statements which begins on page 18.
The first two financial statements are government-wide statements that account for all activities of the City.
The fund financial statements that follow report activities of the City's major funds in more detail.

Government-wide statements

These statements report on the City as a whole. They are on the accrual basis of accounting, much the same

way as private industry.

o The Statement of Net Assets This statement reports all assets and liabilities of the City as of December
31, 2003. The difference between total assets and total liabilities is reported as "net assets". Increases in
net assets generally indicate an improvement in financial position while decreases may indicate a
deterioration of financial position.

o The Statement of Activities This statement serves the purpose of the traditional income statement. It
provides consolidated reporting of the results of all activities of the City for the year ended December 31,
2003. Changes in net assets are recorded in the period in which the underlying event takes place, which
may differ from the period in which cash is received or disbursed. The Statement of Activities displays
the expense of the City's various programs net of related revenues, as well as a separate presentation of
revenues available from general sources such as taxes.

Fund financial statements

These statements provide financial position and results of the City's major funds. A fund is an accounting

entity created to account for a specific activity or purpose. Major funds of the City of Urbana are the

General Fund, Police & Fire Tax Levy Fund, Perpetual Investment Fund, Water Revenue Fund, Sewer

Revenue Fund, and Composting & Mulching Revenue Fund. The creation of some funds is mandated by

law and others are created by management to demonstrate financial compliance with budgetary or legal

requirements. Funds are classified into three broad categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds.

e Governmental Funds Governmental Funds are used to account for "governmental-type"activities".
Unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund statements use a "flow of financial
resources" measurement focus. That is to say, the operating statement of a governmental fund attempts to
answer the question "Are there more or less resources that can be spent in the near future as a result of
events and transactions of the period?" Increases in spendable resources are reported in the operating
statement as "revenues" or "other financing sources." Decreases in spendable resources are reported as
"expenditures" or "other financing uses." We describe the difference between governmental funds and
city-wide governmental activities in the Reconciliation of the statements presented beside the
governmental fund financial statements.

The City of Urbana maintains 22 separate governmental funds. The governmental fund financial
statements display the governmental funds considered to be major funds. All other governmental funds -
"non-major" funds - are combined into a single column. Detailed financial data for each of the non-major
governmental funds is provided in combining statements in the supplementary information section of this
report.

e Proprietary Funds There is one type of proprietary fund: enterprise funds. Proprietary funds provide
similar information as is provided in the government-wide statement only in more detail.
Enterprise Funds- These funds are used to account for the operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises for which 1) the intent is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) be recovered primarily through user charges, or 2) determination of net income is
appropriate for management control, accountability or other purposes. The City of Urbana's Water
Revenue Fund, Sewer Revenue Fund, and the Composting & Mulching Revenue Fund are considered to
be major funds and are displayed separately in the proprietary fund statement.
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. Fiduciary Funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the City government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The
accounting used for the fiduciary funds is much like that for the proprietary funds.

e Notes to the basic financial statements the notes provide additional and explanatory data. They are an
integral part of the basic financial statements.

e Required supplementary information In addition to the basic financial statements and notes, this report
also contains required supplementary information (RSI).

e Supplemental information. Combining statements and budgetary schedules for the non-major funds are
presented in the Supplemental Section of this report. These statements and schedules are presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Government-wide summary and analysis
The amount by which the City' s assets exceed its liabilities is called net assets. At year-end the City's net

assets were $8.8 million. Of that amount, approximately $1.3 was invested in capital assets, net of the
debt related to those assets. The remaining $5.8 million was unrestricted and available for future use as
directed by City Council.

Net Assets, December 31, 2003 & December 31, 2002

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Assets: 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Current and Other $6,486,563 $6,426,937 $1,237,001 $1,095,288 $7,723,564 $7,522,225
Capital Assets $9,954,628 $10,491,668 $4,365,854 $4,613,290 $14,320,482 $15,104,958
Total Assets $16,441,191 $16,918,605 $5,602,855 $5,708,578 $22,044,046 $22,627,183

Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities $5,565,394 $5,884,536 $5,453,476 $5,991,716 $11,018,870 $11,876,252
Other Liabilities $2,093,431 $2,134,668 $130,959 $134,494 $2,224,390 $2,269,162

Total Liabilities $7,658,825 $8,019,204 $5,584,435 $6,126,210 $13,243,260 $14,145.414
Net Assets:

Investment in Capital Assets
net of Debt $3,202,734 $3,598,073 ($1,885,783)  ($1,957,660) $1,316,951 $1,640,413
Restricted for:

Capital Projects $552,456 $666,256 n/a n/a $552,456 $666,256
Other $1,143,939 $921,115 n/a n/a $1,143,939 $921,115
Unrestricted $3,883,237 $3,713,957 $1,904.203 $1.540,028 $5,787.440 $5,253,985

Total Net Assets $8,782,366 $8,899,401 $18,420 ($417,632) $8,800,786 $8,481,769
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Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Service
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Income Taxes
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Grants&Contributions not restricted
Investment Earning
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Health
Transportation
Community Evironment
Leisure Activities
Basic Utilities
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Water
Sewer
Compost & Mulching

Total Expenses
Increase(decrease) in Net Assets
Net Assets January 1

Net Assets December 31

Changes in Net Assets, year ended December 31, 2003 & December 31, 2002
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

$ 2,086,381 $ 1626560 $ 2985184 $ 3125392 $ 5,071,565 $ 4,751,952
$ 187,565 $ H758 $ - $ - $ 187,565 $ 94,758
$ 323716 $ 383218 $ 82635 $ -3 406,351 $ 383,218
$ - $ -

$ 4044104 $ 4,053,078 $ -3 -3 4044104 $ 4,053,078
$ 520,599 $ 471,537 $ -3 - $ 52059 $ 471,537
$ 467,561 $ 124,684 $ - $ - $ 467,561 $ 124,684
$ 656,050 $ 1,548677 $ -3 -8 656,050 $ 1,548,677
$ 2212719 $ 97,684 $ -3 - $ 2212719 $ 97,684
$ 250417 $ 298349 $ 89300 $ 107,000 $ 348717 $ 405,349
$ 8766672 $ 8698545 $§ 3157119 $§ 3232392 $ 11923791 $  11,930.937
$ 151299 $ 1,701,976 $ - $ - $ 1512995 $ 1,701,976
$ 4443104 $ 4132561 $ -3 -3 4443104 $ 4,132,561
$ 250,120 $ 220,333 $ - $ - $ 250,120 $ 220,333
$ 1,696,649 $ 1,076,0% $ - $ - $ 1,696,649 $ 1,076,096
$ 420659 $ 431,608 $ -3 -3 420659 $ 431,608
$ 288,206 $ 337,793 $ - $ - $ 283206 $ 337,793
$ 122,403 $ 125902 $ -3 - $ 122,403 $ 125,902
$ 149541 $ 141,261 $ -3 - $ 149541 $ 141,261
$ -8 - $ 100494 $ 1185834 § 1,004,984 $ 1,185,834
$ 1704783 $§ 1820864 $ 1,704,783 $ 1,820,864

$ - 8 - 8 11,300 $ -3 11,300 $ -
$ 8883677 $ 8167530 $ 2721067 $§ 3006698 $ 11604744 $  11.174228
$ (117.005) $ 531015 $ 436,052 $ 22564 $ 319047 $ 756,709
$ 8899401 $ 8368386 $ (417632) $§ (643326) $ 8481769 $ 7725060
$ 8,782,3% 8899401 §$ 18420 $ (417632) $ 8800816 $ 8481.769

Net assets increased by $ 319,047 during the year. The portion of net assets devoted to capital assets net
of related debt decreased $ 323,462 indicating that the net assets available for other purposes increased

by $ 642,509.

Governmental Activities

Governmental net assets decreased by $ 117,005. Net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt
decreased by $ 395,339, meaning that the net assets available for other governmental purposes increased

by $ 278,334
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The Statement of Activities reports the expenses of each governmental activities programs and the related
program revenue that offsets the cost of each program. The amount by which the costs of a program
exceeds its program revenues represents the extent to which that program must be subsidized by the
general revenues. The following table and graph summarizes the net cost of each program:

Expense and Program Revenue- Governmental Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2003

Program %
Expense Revenue Net Program Cost Change
General Government $1,512,995 $641,906 $871,089 -45.9%
Public Safety $4,443,104 $557,953 $3,885,151 11.1%
Transportation $1,696,649 $697,334 $999,315 127.8%
Community Environment $420,659 $364,660 $55,999 577.2%
Leisure Activities $288,206 $115,556 $172,650 -24.9%
All Other $522.064 $220,253 $301.811 7.3%
Total Governmental Activities $8.883,677 $2,597,662 $6.286.015 3.7%
Year Ended December 31, 2002
Program %
Expense Revenue Net Program Cost Change
General Government $1,701,976 $93,181 $1,608,795 11.1%
Public Safety $4,132,561 $636,481 $3,496,080 -11.8%
Transportation $1,076,096 $637,459 $438,637 33.4%
Community Environment $431,608 $423,339 $8,269 -97.9%
Leisure Activities $337,793 $107,834 $229,959 -6.3%
All Other $487.496 $206.242 $281.254 -14.8%
Total Governmental Activities $8,167,530 $2.104,536 $6.062,994 -13.9%
Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activity
$4,500,000
$4,000,000
$3,500,000
$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000-
$1,000,000
$500,000+
$0-
General Public Safety ~ Transportation Community  Leisure Activities All Other
Government Environment
02002 Expenses W 2002 Program Revenues 02003 Expenses 002003 Program Revenues

The largest dollar net program cost increase was the Public Safety as a result of maintaining staffing in
Police & Fire Department. The large increase in Community Development is the Ohio Department of
Development grants for housing and downtown. In total the net program costs increased just under 4%.
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities' net assets increased $436,052. A significant portion of that amount was
attributed to an increase in the investments in capital assets net of debt. The remainder of the increase in
net assets was in the unrestricted net assets category. There were user rate increases in 2003 in Water of
3% and in Sewer of 3%, the usage increased significantly. A $1 charge on each residential utility
customer was added to fund the compost and mulching facility in 2002. Early in 2004, a local company
Urbana Materials took over operations of the mulch program. The City of Urbana and Urbana Materials
are excited about this partnership, and believe the program will succeed. As previously mentioned earlier
and throughout this report, the top priority the City of Urbana is addressing is the well field treatment of
the existing wells and a new well field located northwest of Urbana. Contract for the GAC System and
the well field north of Urbana.

Expense and Program Revenue- Business-type Activities
for year ended December 31, 2003

Program
Expense Revenue Net Program Cost
Water $1,004,984 $1,185,088 -$180,104
Sewer $1,704,783 $1,828,305 -$123,522
Compost & Mulching $11.300 $54,426 -$43,126
Total Business-type Activities $2,721,067 $3,067,819 -$346,752
for year ended December 31, 2002
Program
Expense Revenue Net Program Cost
Water $1,185,834 $1,171,719 $14,115
Sewer $1,820,864 $1,926,734 -$105,870
Compost & Mulching $0 $26,939 -$26,939
Total Business-type Activities $3,006,698 $3,125,392 -$91,755
Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activity
$2,000,000-
$1,800,000
$1,600,000
$1,400,000-
$1,200,000-
$1,000,000
$800,000-
$600,000-
$400,000-
$200,000
$o,
Water Sewer
02002 Expenses 2002 Program Revenues 02003 Expenses 02003 Program Revenues
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Budget variations

There were four significant variations from budget in all funds:

1) Thelargest favorable variance occurred in the Intergovernmental Revenues from several Estate Tax
settlements.

2) The City hired an attorney during 2003 for labor negotiations. One issue that impacted the budget
was that employee would contribute 10% of the health insurance premiums.

3) Vacanciesthroughout the City departments are one measure the administration has taken to reduce
expenses. All the vacancies were through attrition and the City did not lay-off any employees. The
City management wantsto fill the vacancies as soon as revenues increase to a point that the City can
finance the positions. The Fire Division, Police Division, and Income Tax, kept one position each
open throughout 2003. The retirement of the Superintendent of Parks and Recreation provided the
same opportunity. In the Recreation Administration budget the savings can be seen from the original
budget.

4) TheMunicipal Pool operation changes negatively impacted the budget but the city has worked
through the issues and expects a good year in 2004.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Capital Asset Activity
Significant capital activity for the year includes:
Expenditures of the annual resurfacing street $208,251.
The City and County are both use grant monies to build approximately 5 miles of abike path. The
bike path will connect to the YMCA and go to Springfield.
Reserved $50,000 for the 68 By-Pass Project to get the reserve to $450,000.
Landfill expenditures are taken from the Capital Improvement Fund to address the environmental
issues at the City closed facility. The expenses incurred in 2003 were $125,349.
The Water Fund continued to address capital heeds with the purchase of the new well field and
approval for a Granular Activated Charcoal system on the Old Troy Pike well field.

Debt

Ohio law restricts the amount of debt that a City may issue. The aggregate principal amount of unvoted
debt "net indebtedness may not exceed 5.5% of the assessed valuation for property tax purposes of all real
and personal property located within the City. Certain debt with arepayment source other than general tax
revenues is excluded from the definition of net indebtedness. Under that definition, the City has
approximately $4.1 million of net indebtedness as of December 31, 2003, leaving alegal debt margin for
unvoted debt of approximately $7.0 million.

During 1995 and 1996 the City upgraded the wastewater treatment plant to a Class A plant financed with
Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) debt. At the same time the City refinanced General
Obligation Debt of 5.75% to 7.0% with OWDA debt with afixed rate of 4.56%. Capital Project Planning
currently projects only three new debt issue in the next five years, the issues would be the new well field,
the landfill issues, and a new fire pumper.

A summary of outstanding debt at year-end is as follows:

Govemmental Activities Business-Type Activities
12/31/03 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/02
General Obilgation Notes/Bonds $2,967,000 $3,193,000 $1,898,000 $2,187,000
OWDA & OPWC Loans 0 0 $3479,778 $3,755,999
Total $2,967,000 $3,193,000 $5,377,778 $5,942,999

Additional detailed datafor all debt of the City of Urbanais presented in the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statement in Note 8 Long-Term Liabilities.
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Contacting the City of Urbana Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with an overview of the City of Urbana's finances. If you have any questions or need additional financial
information, please contact the Finance Office, City of Urbana, 205 S Main Street, Urbana, Ohio 43078.
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CITY OF URBANA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

ASSETS
Pooled Cash & Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowance)
Income Tax
Property Tax
Interest
Accounts Receivable
Other
Internal Balances
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
Capital Assets
Equipment and Buildings ( Net of Depreciation)
Land
Work in Progress
Bond Issuance Costs

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued:

Salaries
Workers' Compensation
Interest Payable
Pension
Deferred Revenues
Long-Term
Unfunded Pension
Landfill Post Closure Costs
Non Current Liabilities:

Due within one-year
Due in more than one year
Deferred Amount of Refunding
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Other
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities & Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type Totals
Activities Activities 2003

$ 3,841,456 $ 837,512 $ 4,678,968
$ 711,848 $ - $ 711,848
$ 635,690 $ - $ 635,690
$ 112,710 $ - $ 112,710
$ 128,991 $ 510,196 $ 639,187
$ 183,321 $ - $ 183,321
$ 168,154 $ (168,154) $ -
$ 655,369 $ - $ 655,369
$ 49,024 $ 57,447 $ 106,471
$ 6,979,180 $ 3,621,923 $ 10,601,103
$ 2,944,985 $ 611,706 $ 3,556,691
$ - $ 113,645 $ 113,645
$ 30,463 $ 18,580 $ 49,043
$ 16,441,191 $ 5,602,855 $ 22,044,046
$ 215,965 $ 44,911 $ 260,876
$ 221,125 $ 32,111 $ 253,236
$ 170,977 $ 25,765 $ 196,742
$ 66,133 $ 21,492 $ 87,625
$ 171,427 $ 6,680 $ 178,107
$ 1,247,804 $ - $ 1,247,804
$ 287,569 $ - $ 287,569
$ 1,501,379 $ - $ 1,501,379
$ 352,890 $ 1,297,190 $ 1,650,080
$ 3,423,556 $ 4,210,516 $ 7,634,072
$ - $ (54,230) $ (54,230)
$ 7,658,825 $ 5,584,435 $ 13,243,260
$ 3,202,734 $ (1,885,783) $ 1,316,951
$ 552,456 $ - $ 552,456
$ 1,143,939 $ - $ 1,143,939
$ 3,883,237 $ 1,904,203 $ 5,787,440
$ 8,782,366 $ 18,420 $ 8,800,786
$ 16441191 $ 5,602,855 $ 22,044,046

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF URBANA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and
Operating Capital Changes in Net Assets
Charges for Grants & Grants & Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expense Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activites Total
Primary Government
Governmental Activities:
Public Safety $ 4,443,104 $ 370,388 $ 187,565 $ - $ (3,885,151) $ (3,885,151)
Health $ 250,120 $ 97,850 $ - $ - $ (152,270) $ (152,270)
Leisure Time $ 288,206 $ 115,556 $ - $ - $ (172,650) $ (172,650)
Community Development $ 420,659 $ 66,031 $ - $ 298,629 $ (55,999) $ (55,999)
Basic Utilities $ 122,403 $ 122,403 $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transportation $ 1,696,649 $ 672,247 $ - $ 25,087 $  (999,315) $  (999,315)
General Government $ 1,512,995 $ 641,906 $ - $ - $ (871,089) $ (871,089)
Interest on Debt $ 149,541 $ - $ - $ - $ (149,541 $  (149,541)
Total Governmental Activities $ 8,883,677 $ 2,086,381 $ 187,565 $ 323,716 $ (6,286,015) $ (6,286,015)
Business-Type Activities:

Water $ 1,004,984 $ 1,102,453 $ - $ 82,635 $ 180,104 $ 180,104
Sewer $ 1,704,783 $ 1,828,305 $ - $ - $ 123,522 $ 123,522
Compost & Mulching $ 11,300 $ 54,426 $ - $ - $ 43,126 $ 43,126
Total Business-Type Activities $ 2,721,067 $ 2,985,184 $ - $ 82,635 $ 346,752 $ 346,752

Total $ 11,604,744 $ 5,071,565 $ 187,565 $ 406,351 $ (6,286,015) $ 346,752 $ (5,939,263)

General Revenues

Taxes:
Income Taxes $ 4,044,104 $ - $ 4,044,104
Property Taxes $ 520,599 $ - $ 520,599
Estate Taxes $ 467,531 $ - $ 467,531

Other:
Interest Earnings $ 221,279 % - $ 221,279
Grants or Contributions not restricted by Program $ 656,050 $ - $ 656,050
Miscellaneous $ 259,417 $ 89,300 $ 348,717
Total General Revenues $ 6,168,980 $ 89,300 $ 6,258,280
Change In Net Assets $ (117,035) $ 436,052 $ 319,017
Net Asset - Beginning $ 8899401 $ (417,632) $ 8,481,769
Net Asset - Ending $ 8782366 $ 18,420 $ 8.800.786

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF URBANA
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

ASSETS
Pooled Cash & Investments

Receivables (Net of Allowance)
Income Tax
Property Tax
Interest
Accounts Receivable
Other
Due from Other Funds
Due from Other Governments
Inventory
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued:
Salaries
Workers' Compensation
Vacation & Sick Leave
Pension
Deferred Revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCE
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for Inventory
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved, Reported in:
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Fund
Total Fund Balance & Other Credits

Total Liabilities, Fund Balance, & Other Credits

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY FUNDS GOVERNMENT
POLICE PERPETUAL NON MAJOR PERMANENT
&FIRE LEVY INVESTMENT GOVERNMENTAL TRUST
GENERAL FUND FUND FUNDS FUND
$ 354610 $ 131641 $ 1,827,353 $ 1,443,470 84,382
$ 381,347 $ 152539 $ - $ 177,962 $ -
$ 510613 $ -8 - $ 125077  $ -
$ 112,710 $ -8 - $ -8 -
$ 121,341 $ -8 - $ 7650 $ -
$ -8 -8 - $ 183,321  $ -
$ 168,154 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 346,794 $ -8 - $ 308575  $ -
$ 11,018 $ -8 - $ 38,006 $ -
$ 2006587 $ 284180 $  1.827.353 $ 2284061 $ 84,382
$ 53058 $ 355 $ - $ 162,552  $ -
$ 158451 $ 34683 $ - $ 27,991  $ -
$ 124913 $ 25195 $ - $ 20,869  $ -
$ 101,510 $ -8 - $ 15380 $ -
$ 124366 $ 41429 $ - $ 5632 $ -
$ 842647 $ -8 - $ 435377  $ -
$ 1404945 $ 101662 $ - $ 667,801  $ -
$ 11,018 $ -8 - $ 38,006 $ -
$ 28120 $ 5943 $ - $ 56,184  $ -
$ 562,504 $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ 176575 $ - $ 1,053,996 $ -
$ -8 - $ 1,827,353 $ 468,074  $ 84,382
$ 601,642 $ 182518 $ 1,827,353 $ 1,616,260 $ 84,382
$ 2006587 $ 284180 $  1.827.353 $ 2284061 $ 84,382

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

©“

3,841,456

711,848
635,690
112,710
128,991
183,321
168,154
655,369

49,024

$ 6,486,563
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$ 215,965

221,125
170,977
116,890
171,427

1,278,024

2,174,408
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49,024
90,247
562,504
1,230,571
2,379,809
4,312,155
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$ 6,486,563

CITY OF URBANA

RECONCILATION OF TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO NET
ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2003

Total governmental fund balances $4,312,155

Amounts reported for governmental
activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental $ 9,924,165
activities are not financial resources

Other long-term assets are not available
to pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds:
Receivables $30,220
Bond Costs $30,463

Long-Term Liabilities are not due and
payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in the funds:

Bonds & Notes Payable ($2,967,000)
Compensated Absences ($692,556)
Unfunded P&F Pension Liability ($287,569)
Accrued Interest Long-term Debt ($66,133)
Landfill Post Closure Costs ($1,501,379)
Net Assets of Governmental Activities $8,782,366
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CITY OF URBANA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

REVENUES:
Income Taxes
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for Service
Fines,Licenses, & Permits
Miscellaneous including Interest
TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Current:

Public Safety

Health

Leisure Time

Community Development

Basic Utilities

Transportation

General Government
Capital Outlay
Debt Service: Principal

Interest
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues
Over(Under) Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer In
Transfer Out

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Sources
Over(Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1, 2003

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 2003

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY FUNDS GOVERNMENT
POLICE PERPETUAL NON MAJOR PERMANENT
&FIRE LEVY INVESTMENT GOVERNMENTAL TRUST
GENERAL FUND FUND FUNDS FUND
$ 2,166,483 $ 866,594 $ - $ 1,011,027  $ -
$ 427210 $ -3 - $ 93,389 $ -
$ 1,253,422 $ 127,867 $ - $ 909,271  $ -
$ 352,796 $ -3 - $ 188,917  $ -
$ 555574 $ -3 - $ 150,787  $ -
$ 309598 $ -3 - $ 323487 % -
$ 5065083 $ 994461 $ - $ 2676878 % -
yes no

$ 3195136 $ 944488 $ - $ 120,425  $ -
$ 50995 $ -3 - $ 168,454  $ -
$ 239977 $ -8 - $ -8 -
$ 74051 $ -3 - $ 346,608  $ -
$ 122,403 $ -8 - $ -8 -
$ 10436 $ -3 - $ 864,338  $ -
$ 1,136,159 $ -3 - $ 146,383  $ -

- $ -8 - $ 872,108  $ -

- $ -8 - $ 172,905  $ -

- $ -8 - $ 149541  $ -
$ 4829157 $ 944488 $ - $ 2840762 $ -

yes no

$ 235926 $ 49973 $ - $ (163,884) $ -
$ 117,400 $ -3 50,000 $ 353637 % -
$ (3250000 $ -3 - $ (196,037) $ -
$ (207,600) $ -3 50,000 $ 157,600  $ -
$ 28326 $ 49973 $ 50,000 $ (6,284) $ -
$ 573316 $ 132545 $ 1,777,353 $ 1622544  $ 84,382
$ -8 -8 - - $ -
$ 601642 $ 182518 $ 1,827,353 $ 1616260 $ 84,382

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS

4,044,104
520,599
2,290,560
541,713
706,361
633,085
8,736,422
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4,260,049
219,449
239,977
420,659
122,403
874,774

1,282,542
872,108
172,905
149,541

8,614,407
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$ 122,015

521,037
(521,037)

@* ¥

$ 122,015

$ 4,190,140
$ -
$ 4,312,155

CITY OF URBANA
RECONCILATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OFACTIVITIES

FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003
Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activites, the cost of those assets
is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period

see Footnote 15

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide
current financial resources are not reported as revenues in
the funds:

Net Revenues

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the

governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do

not require the use of current financial resources and therefore

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Vacation/Sick Leave

Interest Payable

Change in Net Assets
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$122,015

(379,209)

($19,617)
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
BALANCE SHEET OF PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

ASSETS
Current Assets
Pooled Cash & Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowance):
Accounts
Due From Other Funds
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
Work in Progress
Work in Progress
Bond Issuance Costs
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries & Wages
Accrued Worker Compensation
Accrued Interest Payable
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave
Accrued Pension
Current portion of Notes Payable
Current portion of Bonds Payable
Current portion of Loan Payable

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave
G.O. Bonds Payable
Loans Payable
Deferred Amount of Refunding
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES & Net Assets

COMPOST &
WATER SEWER MULCHING
REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE TOTAL

$ 156,739 $ 611,410  $ 69,363  $ 837,512
$ 193,622 $ 315872 $ 702§ 510,196
$ (43,154) $ (1250000 $ -3 (168,154)
$ 33,746 $ 23701 $ -3 57,447
$ 340,953 $ 825983 $ 70,065  $ 1,237,001
$ 1,932,312 $  2301,317 $ - $ 4233629
$ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 113,645 $ -3 -8 113,645
$ 4,356 $ 14,224 § -3 18,580
$ 2,050,313 $ 2315541  $ - $ 4365854
$ 2,391,266 $ 3141524 $ 70,065 $ 5,602,855
$ 12,933 $ 31,978 $ -3 44,911
$ 11,439 $ 20672 % -3 32,111
$ 9,189 $ 16,576  $ -3 25,765
$ 21,492 $ -3 -8 21,492
$ 15,946 $ 30,268  $ -3 46,214
$ 2,372 $ 4308 3% -3 6,680
$ 750,000 $ -3 -8 750,000
$ 214,000 $ -3 -8 214,000
$ 22,314 $ 264,662  $ -3 286,976
$ 1,059,685 $ 368,464  $ - $ 1,428,149

$ -
$ 18,699 $ 65015  $ -3 83,714
$ 934,000 $ - $ 934,000
$ 379,338 $ 2813464 $ 3,192,802
$ (18,649) $ (35,581) _$ -3 (54,230)
$ 1,313,388 $ 2842898  $ - $ 4,156,286
$ 2373073 $ 3211362 $ - $ 50584435
$ (253,695) $ (776,809)  $ - $  (1,030,504)
$ 271,888 $ 706971 $ 70,065  $ 1,048,924
$ 18,193 $ (69,838) $ 70,065 $ 18,420
$ 2,391,266 $ 3141524 § 70,065 $ 5,602,855

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2003

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Services
Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Supplies & Materials
Administrative Fees
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

NON OPERATING REVENUE & EXPENSES:
Intergovernmental Revenues
Interest Expense
Other Revenues

Total Non Operating Revenues & Expenses

Income(Loss) before contributions and transfer

Operating Transfer In
Operating Transfer Out

Change in Net Assets
Total Net Assets January 1, 2003

Total Net Assets December 31, 2003

COMPOST &
WATER SEWER MULCHING
REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE TOTAL
$ 1,185,088 $ 1,828,305 $ 54,426 $  3067.819
$ 1,185,088 $ 1,828,305 $ 54,426 $ 3,067,819
$ 297,711 $ 562,478  $ - $ 860,189
$ 202,353 $ 309,455 $ 11,300 $ 523,108
$ 18,384 $ 124,400  $ - $ 142,784
$ 234,265 $ 221,608  $ - $ 455,873
$ 240,337 $ 285998  $ - $ 526,335
$ 993,050 $ 1503939 $ 11,300 $ 2508289
$ 192,038 $ 324,366 $ 43,126 $ 559,530
$ 82,635 $ -3 -8 82,635
$ (95,281) $  (131,089) $ -3 (226,370)
$ 712 $ 19,545 § -3 20,257
$ (11,934) $  (111544) $ -3 (123,478)
$ 180,104 $ 212,822 $ 43,126 $ 436,052
$ - $ 89,300 % -3 89,300
$ - $ (89,300) $ -8 (89,300)
$ 180,104 $ 212,822 $ 43,126 $ 436,052
$  (161,911) $  (282660) _$ 26939 $ (417,632)
$ 18,193 $ (69,838) 70,065  $ 18,420

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2003

COMPOST &
WATER SEWER MULCHING
REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE TOTAL
Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 1,185,198 $ 1,851,855 $ 54,536 $ 3,091,589
Cash Paid to Employee Services $ (285,989) $ (550,214) $ - $ (836,203)
Cash Paid to Suppliers $ (236,034) $ (427,856) $ (11,300) % (675,190)
Cash Paid to Other Funds $ (191,111) $ (346,608) $ - $ (537,719)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 472,064 $ 527,177 $ 43,236 $ 1,042,477
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Operating Transfer In $ - $ 89,300 $ - $ 89,300
Operating Transfer Out $ - $ (89,300) $ - $ (89,300)
Net Cash Provided(Used) by Noncapital Financing_$ - $ - $ - $ -
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquistion of Capital Assets $ (221,422) $ (39,903) $ - $ (261,325)
Proceeds from Contributed Capital $ 82,635 $ - $ - $ 82,635
Proceeds from Debt $ 750,007 $ - $ - $ 750,007
Principal Paid on Debt $  (1,021,314) $ (266,114) $ - $  (1,287,428)
Interest Paid on Debt $ (88,948) $ (132,515) $ - $ (221,463)
Net Cash Flows used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities $ (499,042) $ (438,532) $ - $ (937,574)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest Received $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net Cash provided(used) by investing Activites $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net Increase (Decrease) Cash and Cash Equivaler_$ (26,978) $ 88,645 $ 43,236 $ 104,903
Beginning Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 183,717 $ 522,765 $ 26,127 $ 732,609
Ending Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 156,739 $ 611,410 $ 69,363 $ 837,512
Reconciliation of net operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities
Net operating income $ 192,038 $ 324,366 $ 43,126 $ 559,530
Adjustments
Depreciation $ 240,337 $ 285,998 $ - $ 526,335
Assets & Liabilities
(Increase)Decrease In Accounts Receivable $ 104 $ 23,550 $ 110 $ 23,764
(Increase)Decrease In Due From Other Funds $ 43,154 $ (125,000) - $ (81,846)
(Increase)Decrease In Inventory $ 166 $ (1,810) $ - $ (1,644)
Increase(Decrease) In Accounts Payable $ (13,123) $ 15,115 $ - $ 1,992
Increase(Decrease) In Salaries & Wages $ 3,948 $ 3,472 $ - $ 7,420
Increase(Decrease) In Workers' Compensation $ 5,438 $ 8,539 $ - $ 13,977
Increase(Decrease) In Vacation & Sick Leave $ 3,741 $ 2,187 $ - $ 5,928
Increase(Decrease) In Pension $ (3,739) $ (9,240) $ - $ (12,979)
Increase(Decrease) In Due to Other Funds $ - $ - $ - $ -
Total Adjustments $ 280,026 $ 202,811 $ 110 $ 482,947
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 472,064 $ 527,177 $ 43,236 $ 1,042,477

SEE NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF URBANA

STATEMENT OF ASSETS - ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS

ASSETS:
Restricted Cash

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payables

Payable from Restricted Assets
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003
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AGENCY
TOTAL

$241,655
$241,655

$1,599
$240,056

$241,655




CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Urbana, Ohio (City) is a political unit incorporated and established for the purpose of
exercising the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the State of Ohio.

The City was incorporated in 1868, and has a Council-Mayor form of government. The City provides the
following services: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, water, sewer, recreation,
planning and zoning and general administrative services.

For financial reporting purposes, the City includesin thisreport all funds, agencies, boards, commissions,
and departments in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
14 criteria for determining the entity and component units. Under the provisions of GASB Statement No.
14, the City of Urbana is the primary government, since it is a general purpose government that has a
separate elected governing body; functions as a separate legal entity; and isfiscally independent of other
state and local governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that the
City may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own
budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issue debt. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, these basic financial statements present the government and its component units,
entities for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the government’s operations and so data is
combined with data of the primary government. Each discretely presented component unit, on the other
hand, is reported in a separate column in the financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from
the government. There are no blended or discretely presented component units at December 31, 2003.

Certain units of local governments, over which the City exercises no authority, such as the Champaign
County Library, Champaign County Health District and Ohio Hi-Point Joint Vocational School, are other
local governmental and non-profit entities with independent elected officials and are excluded from the
accompanying basic financial statements. The City is not acomponent unit of any other entity.

Other local governmental entities that overlap the City's boundaries are Champaign County and the
Urbana City School District. These entities do not meet the reporting entity criteria and, therefore, are not
included in the City's financial reports.

B. Basisof Presentation

Government-wide financial statements

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the City as awhole.
These statements distinguish between activities that are governmental in nature, which are normally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent upon fees and charges for support. Interfund and internal service fund activities are
generally eliminated to avoid the “doubling-up” effect on revenues and expenses.

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows.

The government-wide statement of activities presents a comparison between expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each governmental program.
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

Program revenues include charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services as well as grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.

Revenues not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of
program revenues and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business-type segment is
self-supporting or relies upon general revenues of the City.

The caption “Capital assets, net of related debt” consists of capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributabl e to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints placed upon their use are either: 1) externally
imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of
other governments, or 2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The
net assets restricted for other purposes result from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their net
asset use. When both restricted and non-restricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy
to userestricted resources first, then non-restricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial
statements. All other funds are aggregated and reported as non-major governmental funds.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the City conform to generally accepted
accounting principles for local governments as prescribed by the GASB. The accounts of the City are
organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures (expenses). Fund accounting segregates funds
according to the intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
financial related legal and contractual provisions.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed. The
acquisition, use and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related current liabilities
(except those accounted for in proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The
City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is used to account for government resources not accounted for in
any other fund. The General Fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided it is
expended or transferred according to the City Charter and/or the general laws of the State of Ohio.

Police & Fire Tax Levy Fund - To account for the 3/10% income tax for additional patrolmen and
firefighters that the General Fund can not financially support.

Perpetual Investment Fund - To account for the proceeds from the sales of the City's Gas Lines in
1982. The Fund currently accounts for moniesset aside for the 68 by-pass.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Funds — generally are used to account for assets held in a fiduciary capacity on behalf of
others. The Fiduciary Funds are not included in the government wide statements.

Governmental Permanent Fund - reports the donations of the principal in the Cemetery Trust Principal
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

Fund , which islegally restricted. The earnings are reported in the Cemetery Trust Income Fund and
may be used for the purposes that support the government's program.

Agency Funds- accounts for fund held simply being in custodial in nature.
Proprietary (Business-type) Funds

The proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing activities that are similar to those
found in the private sector where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund — Accounts for the operation of the waterworks distribution system and related
expenses, including capital improvement and debt service. The operation is exclusively financed by
customer user charges.

Sewer Fund — Accounts for the operation of the sanitary sewer collection and treatment system and
related expenses, including capital improvement and debt service. The operation is exclusively
financed by customer user charges.

Compost & Mulching Fund - Accounts for the operation of the Compost and Mulching facility for
grass clippings and tree branches.

C. Basisof Accounting

Governmental Funds. The accounting and financia reporting treatment that applies to a fund is
determined by its measurement focus. All governmental funds are accounted for using a current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are
included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in current financial
resources.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for all governmental fund types. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become
both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined
and "available" means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. The City considers revenues available if they are collected within 60 days
after year end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability isincurred. Principal and interest
of general long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been
accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, special assessments, licenses,
interest revenue and charges for services. Fines and permits revenues are not susceptible to accrual
because they are generally not measurable until received in cash.

The City reports deferred revenues on its governmental funds' balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise
when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for recognition in
the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the City receives resources before it has a legal
claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has alegal claim to
the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized.



CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

Because governmental funds' financial statements employ a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting than the government-wide statements, governmental funds' financial statements include
reconciliations to the government-wide statements.

Proprietary Funds. All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the
operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet.

Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e.,
expenses) in net total assets. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generaly result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by proprietary funds. Under this method, revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities areincurred.

Agency Funds. The agency funds, being custodial in nature, are merely "assets equal liabilities" and,
thus, do not involve the measurement of results of operations. The funds are accounted for using the
accrual basis of accounting.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows procedures prescribed by State law in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements asfollows:

(1) TheCity must submit atax budget of estimated cash receipts and disbursements for all fundsto the
County Budget Commission by July 20 of each year for the following year, January 1 through
December 31.

(2) The County Budget Commission certifies its actions by September 1 and issues an Officia
Certificate of Estimated Resources, (the "Certificate") limiting the maximum amount the City may
expend from a given fund during the year to the estimated resources available.

(3)  About January 1, the Certificate is amended to reflect the actual unencumbered balances from the
preceding year. The City must prepare its appropriations so that the total contemplated
expenditures from any fund during the ensuing year will not exceed the amount stated in the initial
or amended Certificate.

(4 A temporary appropriation measure may be passed to control cash disbursements for the period
January 1 through March 31. Before April 1, a permanent appropriation measure must be passed
for the period January 1 through December 31. The budget identifies specific expenditure amounts
by character for each division within each fund.

(5) Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end. State Statute provides that no contract, agreement
or other obligation involving the expenditure of money shall be entered into unless the Director of
Finance first certifies that the money required for such contract, agreement, obligation or
expenditure is in the treasury, or is anticipated to come into the treasury, before the maturity of
such contract. Prior year ending budgetary fund balances do not agree to current beginning fund
balances due to the cancellation of certain encumbrances.

(6) Several City funds are deemed appropriated by local ordinance or City Charter and are therefore
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

F.

exempt from the budget process.

The Mayor acts as budget officer for the City and submits a proposed operating budget to the City
Council on an annual basis. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. The Council enacts
the budget through passage of an ordinance. The appropriation ordinance controls expenditures at the
level of salaries and wages, fringe benefits, contractual and materials and capital outlay. Council can
amend the budget at functional expense lines, through the passage of supplemental ordinances.
Management can amend appropriations below this level without council approval. Supplemental
appropriations to the original appropriations ordinance were made during the year.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary control in the governmental funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances, since they do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities.

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balances on the basis of
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis, as provided by law, is based upon
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements.

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changesin Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budget (Non-
GAAP) Basis are presented on the budgetary basis in the Required Supplementary Information to provide
a meaningful comparison of actual results with the budget. The major differences between the budget
basis and the GAAP basis are that:

(1) Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when they are both
measurable and available (GAAP).

(2) Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is incurred
(GAAP).

(3) Encumbrances are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures (budget) as opposed to areservation
of fund balance (GAAP).

Pooled Cash and Investments

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider al highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. All investments of the
City are recorded at fair value, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.” The statement established
accounting and reporting guidelines for government investments and investment pools. Cash balances
for all City funds, as allowed by law, are pooled and invested to improve cash management. Interest
earnings from investments are allocated to the General Fund except for funds derived from contract, trust
agreement or City ordinance which require crediting otherwise. Except for non-participating investment
contracts, investments are reported at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices. Non-
participating investment contracts such as certificates of deposit are reported at cost.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost (first-in, first-out). The proprietary funds inventories are recorded as
expenses when used. Inventory in governmental funds consists of expendable supplies held for
consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are
purchased. Reported inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates they do not
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H.

constitute "available spendabl e resources,” and are not available for appropriations.

Insurance and Risk

The City of Urbana covers most of its risks of loss through commercial insurance. See Note 13.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental
or business-type columns in the government-wide financial statements. Pursuant to GASB Statement No.
34, for al fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2006, the City must retroactively report al infrastructure
assets acquired before January 1, 2000. The City expects to accomplish retroactive reporting of
infrastructure prior to that deadline.

The City defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of oneyear. The City does maintain an asset recording system for all assets.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost, if actual cost is not available.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value at the time received. Interest on
constructed capital assetsis capitalized in the proprietary funds.

When capital assets are purchased, they are capitalized and depreciated in the government-wide
statements and the proprietary fund statements. Capital assets are recorded as expenditures of the
current period in the governmental fund financial statements.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are asfollows:

Estimated Useful
Description Life (Years)
Land improvements 25
Buildings and improvements 25
Machinery and equipment 5t020

Bond | ssuance Costs

Bond issuance costs for proprietary fund types are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds
using methods that approximate the effective interest method. |ssuance costs at year-end amounted to
$53,379 net of accumulated amortization. These costs are included in prepaid costs on the statement of net
assets.

Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an
employee isreimbursed for accumulated vacation and sick leave at various rates.

Vested vacation and sick leave is recorded as an expense in the government-wide statements for the
period in which such leave was earned. For governmental fund type employees, an expenditure is
recorded in the

governmental funds' statements for only the portion of vested vacation and sick leave that is expected to
be liquidated with expendable available resources.

Payment of vacation and sick leave recorded in the government-wide financial statements is dependent
upon many factors; therefore, timing of future payments is not readily determinable. Management
believes that sufficient resources will be made available when payment is due.
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K. Pensions

The provision for pension costs are recorded when the related payroll is accrued and the obligation is
incurred.

L. Reservesand Designations

Reserves are portions of fund equity that are not appropriable for expenditures/expenses or that are
legally restricted to a specific future use, or both.

Designations are tentative plans for financial resource usein afuture period. Such plans or intentions are
subject to change. They may never be legally authorized or result in expenditures.

M. Grants and Other Intergovernmental Revenues

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs. All other reimbursement-type
grants are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when the related expenditures are
incurred.

N. FEinancia Disclosure

The City has elected to report its financial statements in accordance with statements issued by the
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) prior to December 1, 1989 unless they are superseded by
GASB, asoutlined by GASB 20.

O. Estimates

The preparation of these financial statementsin conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenditure/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

2. Pooled Cash and Investments:

At December 31, 2003 the carrying values of pooled cash and investments and restricted cash and investments were
asfollows:

Carrying
Deposits: Amount
Demand deposits:
Interest-bearing, .6 to 1.62 $724,769
Champaign County Municipa Court Accounts $118,136
Champaign County Municipal Court Capital $292,314
Non-interest bearing $1477
Time deposits:
Money Market/Passbook, 1.44 to 2.33% $653,979
Certificates of deposit, 2.2% to 5.30%
maturing January 30, 2004
to October 5, 2004 $3120948
Total pooled cash and investments $4,920,623
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Deposits & Investments

Except for itemsin-transit, the carrying val ue of deposits by the respective depositories equates to the City's
carrying value. All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities, as described by the Ohio Revised
Code, in amounts equal to at least 110% of the City's carrying value of the deposits (demand and time
deposits and certificates of deposit). Such collateral, as permitted by the State of Ohio, is held at the
respective depository bank's Federal Reserve Bank, or member bank other than the depository bank, in a
pool for the City of Urbana. One institution, in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code, has pledged first
mortgages equal to twice the City's deposit for collateral.

The year-end bank balance of all City deposits including accrued interest was $5,122,899 based on criteria
described in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including
Repurchase Agreements), and Reverse Repurchase Agreements, the bank balance was covered by:

FDIC Insured Deposits $ 300,000
Deposits collateralized with securities held by
pledging financial institution's agent

in the City's name 822,899

Total $5,122,899

3. Income Taxes

Municipalities within the State of Ohio are permitted by state statute to levy an income tax up to a maximum
rate of 1% subject to the approval of the local legislative body. Any rate in excess of 1% requires the
approval of a majority of the eligible voters residing within the municipal corporation. The City of Urbana
levies a tax on all wages, salaries, commissions and other compensation paid by employers and the net
profits from a business or professional person earned within the City, excluding income from intangible
personal property. In addition, City residents pay city income tax on income earned outside the City; net of a
credit limited to 2o for income taxes paid to other municipalities. In 1992 the City Council ordered
mandatory income tax filing.

The tax rate applied in 2003 was 1.4% of which 1% was unvoted and 0.4% was voted. The additional 0.4%
tax became effective January 1, 1992, and is designated to fund fire and police personnel and capital
improvement costs.

Twenty-five percent (25%) of all income tax revenues are required to be used for the purpose of financing
capital improvements, including debt service charges on notes and bonds issued for capital improvements.
This portion of income tax revenues is distributed to the Capital Improvement Fund from which capital
improvements and related debt service charges are financed.

Honeywell Inc., Grimes Division, a loca manufacturing company, accounted for approximately 15.1% of
income tax receiptsto the City in 2003 through the remittance of employee payroll withholdings.

4. Property Taxes
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Property taxes are levied against al real, public utility and tangible (used in business) property located in the
City.

Revenues from property taxes are used by the City pursuant to state statutes for General Fund operations
and as apartial provision for payment of accrued police and fire pension costs.

Ohio law prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 1% (10 mills) of assessed value
without a vote of the people. Under current procedures, the City's share is 0.330% (3.3 mills) of assessed
value.

Real property and public utility taxes collected during 2003 were levied on December 31, 2002 on assessed
values listed as of January 1, 2002, the lien date. One-half of these taxes were due on March 10, 2003, with
the remaining balance due on July 12, 2002. Public utility lien date was December 31, 2002

Tangible personal property taxes collected during 2003 had levy date of December 31, 2002. One-haf of
these taxes were due between February 15, 2002, and May 10, 2002, with the remaining balance due on
October 11, 2002.

Assessed values of real property are established by State law at 35% of appraised market value. A
revaluation of al property is required to be completed no less than every six years with equalization
adjustments in the third year following reappraisal. The last revaluation was completed in 2002. Public utility
property taxes are assessed on tangible personal property as well as land and improvements at true value
(50% of cost). Tangible personal property assessments are 25% of true value. The assessed value for 2003
upon which the 2004 levy will be based is approximately $202,384,025. The assessed value for 2002 upon
which the 2003 levy was based was approximately $199,086,696.

The Champaign County Treasurer collects property taxes on behalf of al taxing districts, including the City

of Urbana. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion of taxes collected. Property taxes
may be paid on either an annual or semi-annual basis.

. Capital Assets

A summary of changesin capital assets governmental activities for year ended December 31, 2003 follows:
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Capital Assets not Depreciated
Land
Capital Assets being Depreciated
Building & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Building & Improvements
Machinery & Equipment

Total
Net Capital Assets

Depreciation was Charged to Governmental Activities as follows:

General Government
Security of Person & Property
Transportation

Health

Community Environment
Leisure Activities

Balance Balance

1/1/2003 Additions Deletions 12/31/2003
$2,900,015 $44,970 $0 $2,944,985
$11,645,225 $6,846 $0 $11,652,071
$2,985.001 $290,091 ($72,520) $3.202,572
$17.,530,241 $341,907 ($72,520) $17,799.628
$4,976,626 $641,265 $0 $5,617,891
$2,061,947 $268,145 ($72,520) $2,257,572
$7.038,573 $909.410 ($72,520) $7.875.463
$10,491,668 ($567,503) $0 $9,924,165
$178,936
$125,177
$539,797
$25,836
$0
$39.664
$909,410

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense

A summary of business-type activities, excluding Work in Progress Capital Assetsat December 31, 2003 follows:

Land
Buildings
Equipment

Total
Less Depreciation
Net Fixed Assets

6. Defined Benefit Pension Plans:

Enterprise Funds

Water
$160,028

Sewer
$451,678

$10,555,736  $20,317,377
$2.645,025  $1.638,939
$13,361,689 $22,407,994
$11.420377 $20.106,677  $31.536.054
$1.932.312 $2.301.317  $4.233.629

A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

37

Total
$611,706
$30,873,113
$4.284.864
$35,769,683
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The City of Urbana participates in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS). OPERS
administers three separate plans. The traditional plan is a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan. The member-directed plan is a defined contribution plan in which the member invests in both
member and employer contribution (employer contribution vest over five years at 20% per year). Under the
member directed plan, members accumulate retirement assets equal to the value of the members and vested
employer contributions plus any investment earnings. The combined plan is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan that has elements of both a defined benefit and a defined
contribution plan. Under the combined plan, employer contributions are invested by the retirement system
to provide a formula retirement benefit similar to the traditional plan benefit. Member contributions, whose
investment is self-directed by the member, accumul ates retirements assets in a manner similar to the member
directed plan.

OPERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits and annual cost of living adjustments to
members of the traditional and combined plans. Members of the member directed plan do not qualify for
ancillary benefits. Authority to establish and amend benefits is a provided by Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code. OPERS issues a stand alone financial report that may be obtained by writing to OPERS, 277 E.
Town St., Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the members of all three plans, except those in law enforcement or
public safety participating in the traditional plan, were required to contribute 8.5 percent of their annual
covered salaries. Member participating in the traditional plan who were in law enforcement contributed 10.1
percent of their annual covered salary; members in public safety contributed 9 percent. The City's
contribution rate for pension benefits for 2003 was 8.55 percent, except for those plan members in law
enforcement or public safety. For those classifications the City’ s pension contributions were 11.7 percent of
covered payroll. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer
contributions.

The City of Urbanarequired contributions for pension obligations to the traditional and combined plans for
the year ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 were $ 386,744, $ 317,715, and $ 304,692 respectively; 91
percent has been contributed for 2003 and 100 percent for 2002 and 2001. The unpaid contribution for 2003 is
recorded asaliability in the respective funds.

B. Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The City of Urbana contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP& F); a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined pension plan. OP&F provides retirement and disability benefits, cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan member and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by the
Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio Revised Code. OP&F issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the
plan. Interested parties may obtain a copy by making awritten request to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension
Fund 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.

Plan members are required to contribute 10.0% of their annual covered salary, while employers are required
to contribute 11.75% and 16.25% respectively for police officers and firefighters. Contributions are
authorized by State statute. The City’ s contributions to OP& F for the years ending December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001 were $497,618, $472,235, and $472,685, respectively, equa to the required contribution for each
year. Approximately 86% has been contributed for 2003 and 100% has been contributed for 2002 and 2001.
The unpaid contribution for 2003 is recorded as aliability in the respective funds.

The City also makes payments to OP& F for its portion of past service cost determined at the time the fund
was established in the mid-1930's. As of December 31, 2003, the unfunded liability is payable, including
principal and interest, in annual installments for $16,666 through the year 2035. The principal balance of
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$287,569 is accounted for as a non-current liability in the governmental activities column of the Statement of
Net Assets. The State of Ohio assumed the liability for past service cost at the time PERS was established.

Postemployment Benefits:

A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

The Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) provides postretirement health care coverage
to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit with either the
traditional or combined plans. Health care coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor
recipients is available. Members of the member-directed plan do not qualify for post retirement health
care coverage. The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer's
contribution to the traditional or combined is set aside for funding of post retirement health care based
on authority granted by State statute. The 2003 local government employer contribution rate was 13.55
percent of the covered payroll (16.7 percent for the public safety and law enforcement); 5.00 percent of
the covered payroll was the portion that was used to fund health care.

Benefits are advance funded using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. Significant actuarial
assumptions, based on OPERS's |lastest actuarial review performed as of December 31, 2002, include a
rate of return on the investments of 8.0 percent, an annual increase in active employee total payroll of
4.0 percent compounded annually (assuming no change in the number of active employees) and an
additional increase in total payroll of between .50 percent and 6.3 percent based on additional annual
pay increases. Health care premiums were assumed to increase 4.0 percent annually.

All investments are carried at market. For actuarial valuation purposes, a smoothed market approach is
used. Assets are adjusted to reflect 25 percent of unrealized market appreciation or depreciation on
investment assets annually.

The number of active contributing participantsin the traditional and combined plan was 364,881. Actual
employer contributions for 2003 which were used to fund post employment benefits were $ 142,709. The
actual contribution and the actuarially required contribution amounts are the same. OPERS's net assets
available for payment of benefits at December 31, 2002, (the lastest information available) were $10.0
billion. The actuarially accrued liability and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability based on the
actuarial cost method used, were $18.7 billion and $8.7 hillion, respectively.

In December 2001, the Board adopted the Health Care “Choice” Plan. The Choice Plan will be offered to
all persons newly hired in an OPERS covered position after January 1, 2003, with no prior service credits
accumulated toward health care coverage. Choices will incorporate a cafeteria approach, offering a
broader range of health care options. The Plan uses agraded scale from ten tothirty years to calculate
a monthly health care benefit. This is in contrast to the ten-year “cliff “ eligibility standard for the
present Plan.

The benefit recipient will be free to select the option that best meets their needs. Recipients will fund
health care costs in excess of their monthly health care benefit. The Plan will also offer a spending
account feature, enabling the benefit recipient to apply their allowance toward specific medical
expenses, much like aMedical Spending Account.

B. Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund

The Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund provides postretirement health care coverage to any person
who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child
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of such persons. An eligible dependent child is any child under the age of eighteen whether or not he
is attending school or under twenty-two if attending full-time or on a2/3 basis.

The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered a Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio Revised Code provides the
authority allowing the OP& F's Board of Trustees to provide health care coverage and states that health
care cost paid from the fund shall be included in the employer’s contribution rate. Health care funding
and accounting is on a pay-as-you-go basis. The total police employer contribution is 19.5 percent of
covered payroll and the total firemen’s employer contribution rate is 24 percent of covered payroll, of
which 7.75 percent of covered payroll was applied to the post employment health care program during
2003. Inaddition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to contribute a portion of the cost
of health care coverage through deduction from their monthly benefit payment. Beginning in 2001, all
retirees and survivorshave monthly health care contributions.

The City’s annual contribution for 2003 that were used to fund postemployment benefits was $79,990
for police and $95,680 for firemen. The fund’s total health care expenses for the year ending December
31, 2002, (the lastest information available) was $141,028,006, which was net of members contributions
of $12,623,875. The number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December 31,
2002, the date of the last actuarial valuation available, were 13,527 for Police and 10,396 for Firefighters.

Long-Term Liabilities:

The following is a summary of changes during 2003 and yearend balances for governmental activities long-
term liabilities of the City for the year ended December 31, 2003:

Balance Balance Due within
Municipal Bldg Renovations
GO Bonds 1995-2015 4.3%-5.85% $2,725,000 $0 $150,000 $2,575,000 $155,000

Police & Fire Capital Improvement

Fire Appartus
GO Bonds 1997-2007 4.3%-5.85% $340,000 $0  $60,000 $280,000 $65,000
Police & Fire Capital Improvement

Airport Runway Expansion
GO Bonds 1997-2007 4.3%-5.85% $128,000 $0 $16,000 $112,000 $16,000
Airport Fund

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave $116,890
General Fund $561,499 $0 $9,209 $552,290
Street Maintenance Fund $93,375 $7,881 $0 $101,256
Oak Dale Cemetery Fund $14,522 $285 $0 $14,807
Police and Fire Income Tax Levy Fund $131,184 $9,909 $0 $141,093
Unfunded P&F Pension Obligation
Special Revenue Police & Fire Pension $291,833 $0 $4.264  $287.569
Total Governmental Activities $4,285,413 $18,075 $239,473 $4,064,015 $352,890

Long-term Liabilities
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The following is a summary of changes during 2003 and year end balances for business-type activities long-
term liabilities of the City for the year ended December 31, 2003:

Balance Balance Due within
Water Fund:
GO Bonds 1996-2006 3.8%-4.7% $320,000 $0 $75,000 $245,000 $80,000
Refinance Waterworks 86
GO Bonds 1995-2009 3.9%-5.85% $755,000 $0 $90,000 $665,000  $100,000
Refinance Waterworks 79
GO Bonds 1997-2007 4.3%-5.85% $272,000 $0 $34,000 $238,000 $34,000
Gwynne St Water Tower
OPWC 0% Interest Loan $423,966 $0 $22,314 $401,652 $22,314
Sewer Fund
GO Bonds 1998-2003 4.88%-4.88% $40,000 $0 $40,000 $0 $0
Sewer Land
OWDA Loan 1995-2012 4.56% $1,604,210 $0 $145,945 $1,458,265 $152,675
Refinanced 1995 Upgrade
OWDA Loan 1995-2015 4.56% $609,137 $0 $38,088 $571,049 $39,845
N-Viro Project
OWDA Loan 1996-2016 4.04% $637,112 $0 $35,557 $601,555 $37,008
N-Viro Project
OWDA Loan 1996-2016 4.12% $91,574 $0 $4,317 $87,257 $5,134
N-Viro Project
OPWC 0% Interest Loan $390,000 $0 $30,000 $360,000 $30,000
Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave $116,245 $13.683 $0 $129,928 $46,214
Total Business-type Activities $5.200,244 $13.683 $015221 $4.757.706  $547.190
Long-term Liabilities
* Additions and reductions of accrued vacation and sick |eave are shown net since it is impracticable for the

City to determine these amounts separately. The current portion of accrued sick leave amounts payable is included
with accrued payroll in the governmental funds. The current portion complies with provisions of GASB 16.

The Water Revenue Fund has one outstanding bond anticipation note in the amount of $750,000 that matures
on November 11, 2004 at an interest rate 1.62%.
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Annua requirements to pay principal and interest on long-term debt at December 31, 2003 reflected in
thousands are:

Governmental Activities

Eire Appartus  Municipal Bldg Airport Runway Total
Prin. Int. Prin. Int. Prin. Int. Prin. Int.

2004 $ 65 $ 14 $ 155 $ 144 $ 16 $ 6 $ 236 $ 164

2006 $ 70 $ 10 $ 165 $ 136 $ 16 $ 6 $ 251 $ 152

2006 $ 70 $ 7 $ 175 $ 128 $ 16 $ 5 $ 261 $ 140

2007 $ 75 $ 4 $ 185 $ 119 $ 16 $ 4 $ 276 $ 127

2008 $ - 3 - $ 195 $ 109 $ 16 $ 4 $ 211 $ 113
2009-13 $ - 3 - $1145 $ 370 $ 32 $ 3 $1,177 $ 373
2014-term $ - $ - $ 555 § 50 $ - $ - $ 55 % 50

Total $ 280 $ 35 $2575 $ 1056 $ 112 $ 28 $2967 $ 1119
All of these debts are paid from the Capital Project Funds

Business-type Activities
Sewer Business-Type
Water OWDA.OPWC & Bonds Activities Total

i . incinal incipal

2004 $236 $54 $265 $124 $501 $178

2005 $236 $43 $275 $113 $511 $156

2006 $246 $33 $286 $102 $532 $135

2007 $172 $22 $298 $90 $470 $112

2008 $176 $20 $310 $78 $486 $98
2009-2013 $305 $13 $1,412 $195 $1,717 $208
2014-term $179 $0 $352 $18 $531 $18

Total $1,550 $185 $3,198 $720 $4,748 $905

L oans payabl e to the Ohio Water Development Authority (OWDA) are revenue obligations incurred to help
finance sewage treatment plants to be repaid from charges for services.

The Ohio Revised Code provides that the net debt of a municipal corporation whether or not approved by
the electors, shall not exceed 10.5% of the total value of all property in the municipal corporation as listed
and assessed for taxation. In addition, the unvoted net debt of municipal corporations cannot exceed 5.5%
of the total taxation value of property. The statutory limitations of debt are measured by a direct ratio of net
debt to tax valuation in terms of a percentage. On December 31, 2003, the City's total net debt amounted to
2.0% of the total assessed value of all property within the City. The aggregate amount of the City's unvoted
debt is also subject to overlapping debt restrictions with Champaign County and the Urbana City School
District. As of December 31, 2003, these entities have complied with the requirement that overlapping debt
must not exceed 1% (10 mills) of the assessed property value.

9. Advanced Refunding
On February 1, 1995, the City of Urbana advance-refunded the 1991 Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade
Bonds with anew Ohio Water Department Authority (OWDA) Loan. The City signed a loan agreement for

$ 2,600,000 from the OWDA to provide resources to purchase U.S. Government Securities that were placed
in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for all future debt service payments on the
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refunded debt, as of December 31, 2003, $ 1,530,000 was the outstanding balance of thisloan. As aresult,
the refunded bonds are considered defeased and the liability was removed from the Sewer Fund. The
advanced refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of
the old debt of $ 105,661. This difference reported in the accompanying financial statements is being
charged to operations through the year 2012 using the effective interest method. The advanced refund was
taken to reduce total debt service payments over the remaining 17 years by $655,522 and to obtain an
economic gain (difference between present value of the debt service payments of the refunded and
refunding bonds) of $ 414,214. As of December 31, 2003 the debt service requirement to maturity of the
defeased bonds was $2,053,816.

On July 1, 1995, the City issued $4.885 million in General Obligation Bonds to fund a $3.6 million municipal

building upgrade and advance refund the 1979 Water Mortgage Revenue Bonds. The new bonds with an

interest rate of 3.9% to 5.5%, refunded the $1,545,000 revenue bonds with an average rate of 6.75% as of
December 31, 2003 $665,000 was the outstanding balance of thisissue. The net proceeds (after the public

safety building proceeds, underwriting fees and other closing costs) of $1,662,373 plus $341,172 of the 1979
Revenue Bonds' sinking funds were used to purchase U.S. government securities. These securities were

deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide all future debt service payments on the
1979 revenue bonds. Asaresult, the 1979 revenue bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for
those bonds has been removed from the Water Enterprise fund. The advance refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $86,172. This

difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements, is being charged to operations through the
year 2009 using the effective interest method. The advance refunding reducesits total debt service over the
next 14 years by $655,262 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between present values of the old and

new debt service payments) of $120,593. As of December 31, 2003 the debt service requirement to maturity

of the defeased bonds was $1,026,050.

10. Interfund Receivables and Payable

Interfund balances at December 31, 2003 consist of the following individual fund receivables and payables:

Due From Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $168,154 $0
Enterprise Funds
Water $0 $43,154
Sewer $0 $125.000
Total Enterprise Funds $0  $168.154

Total Interfund Receivables &
Payables $168,154 $168,154

During the late 1990’s the Sewer Revenue Fund did not reimburse the General Fund for administrative
charges, in accordance with the financial policies of City, due to financial constraints. The City intends to
reimburse the liability to the General Fund as the Sewer Revenue Fund isfinancially capable.

11. Contingent Liabilities
The City was a defendant in a number of lawsuits pertaining to matters that are incidental to performing
routine governmental and other functions. Legal counsel cannot estimate exposure, if any, in these suits. All

cases are being defended vigorously by the City. It is the opinion of management and the City's legal
counsel that sufficient resources will be available for the payment of such claims, if any, upon ultimate
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2003

settlement or covered by insurance.

12. Deficit Fund Balances/Net Assets

13.

Thefollowing individual funds had deficit fund balances/net assets at December 31, 2003:

Victims Advocates Grant Fund $69
Sewer Revenue Fund $69,338

The negative fund balances are a result of the transaction involving accruals of the liabilities, the capital
assets, or the fact that the grant expenditures will be reimbursed from the Granting Agency in the near
future.

Risk Management:

The City belongs to the Public Entities Pool of Ohio ("PEP), a risk sharing pool available to Ohio local
governments. PEP provides property and casualty insurance for its members. PEP is a member of the American
Public Entity Excess Pool (APEEP). Member governments pay annua contributions to fund PEP. PEP pays
judgements, settlements and other expenses resulting form covered claims that exceed the members
deductible.

PEP retains casualty risks up to $250,000 per claim. Claims exceeding $250,000 are reinsured with APEEP up to
$2,00,000 per claim and $5,000,000 in the aggregate per year. Governments can elect additional coverage, from
$2,000,000 to $10,000,000, from the General Reinsurance Corporation. If the losses exhaust PEP's retained
earnings, APEEP covers PEP losses up to $5,000,000 per year, subject to a per-claim limit of $2,000,000.

PEP retains property risks, including automobile physical damage up to $100,000 on any specific loss. The
Travelers Indemnity Company reinsures specific losses exceeding $100,000. The Travelers Indemnity
Company also provides aggregate excess coverage for property including automobile physical damage subject
to an annual stop loss. When the stop loss is reached in any year, The Travelers Indemnity Company
provides coverage in excess of $10,000. The aforementioned casualty and property reinsurance agreements do
not discharge PEP's primary liability for claims payments on covered losses. Claims exceeding coverage limits
are the obligation of the City.

Pep's Financial Statements (most current available and audited by other accountants) conform with generally
accepted accounting principles, and reported the following:

Casualty Coverage 2002 2001

Assets $20,174,977 $19,358,458
Liabilities $8,550,749 $8,827,588
Retained Earnings $11.624.228 $10.530.870
Property Coverage 2002 2001

Assets $2,565,408 $1,890,323
Liabilities $655,318 $469,100

Retained Earnings $1.010.000 $1.421.223



CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
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14.

15.

The City pays an annua premium to PEP for this coverage. The agreement provides that PEP will be self-
sustaining through member premiums and the purchase of excess and stop-lossinsurance. The deductible per
occurrence for all types of claimsis $2,500. Liability had a per-occurrence retention limit of $500,000. After the
retention limits are reached, excess insurance will cover up to the limits stated below.

General Liability (including law enforcement) $2,000,000 per occurrence
Automobile Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence
Public Officials Liability $2,000,000 per occurrence
Boiler and Machinery BLANKET COVERAGE
Property BLANKET COVERAGE

There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the year in any category of risk. Settled
claims did not exceed insurance coverage in the past three years.

Landfill Closure/Post Closure Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations require the City to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the landfill for thirty years after closure. The City stopped accepting waste at the landfill in 1987.
The Ohio EPA approved the final closure and post closure plan in January 1988. With the assistance of
Bennett and Williams, the geological engineers, the $1,501,379 reported as landfill post closure liability at
December 31,2003, represents the estimated costs to maintain and monitor the landfill through 2018. Actual
costs may change due to inflation, changes in technology, or changesin regulations.

Reconcile Capital Outlay Expenditures Net of Depreciation

On Governmental Fund Balance Reconcilation of Total Governmental Funds to Net Assets of Governmental

Activities an item required for reconcilation is the difference between the Depreciation of Fixed Assets and the

amount reported as Capital Outlaysin the Governmental Fund Statements. The Reconcilation is asfollows:

Depreciation for 2003 $ 909,410
Reported Capital Outlays $ 872,108

less: Capital Assets Purchases $ 341,907
Net Capital Outlays $ 530,201
Amount Reporeted in the Reconcilation $ (379,209)
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
General Fund
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Original Final From Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenues:
Local Taxes $2,732,470 $2,732,470 $2,730,869 ($1,601)
Intergovernmental $922,000 $900,130 $1,095,289 $195,159
Charges for Service $276,750 $292,200 $382,955 $90,755
Fines, Licenses & Permits $798,000 $693,000 $660,579 ($32,421)
Investment Income $205,000 $250,000 $187,023 ($62,977)
Miscellaneous & Reimbursements $599,200 $589,100 $670,851 $81,751
Total Revenues $5,533,420 $5,456,900 $5,727,566 $270,666
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
City Council
Salaries $50,610 $50,400 $50,400 $0
Fringe Benefits $8,575 $9,820 $9,818 $2
Contractual/Material $2,215 $1,180 $1,124 $56
Total $61,400 $61,400 $61,342 $58
Mayor/Adminstration
Salaries $198,230 $188,915 $188,674 $241
Fringe Benefits $74,550 $68,705 $68,666 $39
Contractual/Material $13,285 $38,425 $37,865 $560
Total $286,065 $296,045 $295,205 $840
Municipal Court
Salaries $366,385 $397,145 $396,436 $709
Fringe Benefits $174,860 $149,705 $149,364 $341
Contractual/Material $80,696 $85,006 $81,074 $3,932
Total $621,941 $631,856 $626,874 $4,982
Engineering
Salaries $74,920 $56,170 $54,787 $1,383
Fringe Benefits $15,330 $17,080 $15,905 $1,175
Contractual/Material $13,702 $20,702 $16,093 $4,609
Total $103,952 $93,952 $86,785 $7,167
Public Works
Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0
Fringe Benefits $0 $0 $0 $0
Contractual/Material $115,555 $115,350 $112,532 $2,818
Total $115,555 $115,350 $112,532 $2,818
Finance Accounting
Salaries $133,855 $134,455 $134,448 $7
Fringe Benefits $38,615 $40,965 $40,481 $484
Contractual/Material $13,194 $10,234 $9,712 $522
Total $185,664 $185,654 $184,641 $1,013
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City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

General Fund

For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Finance Income Tax
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Law Department
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Non-Departmental
Contractual/Material
Total

Total General Government

Security of Person and Property
Police Services
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Fire Services
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Ambulance Services
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Total Security of P& P

Health
Contractual/Material
Total Health

Leisure Activities
Recreation Administration
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total
Recreation Programs
Salaries
Fringe Benefits
Contractual/Material
Total

Variance

Original Final From Final

Budget Budget Actual Budget
$30,905 $30,135 $30,095 $40
$15,510 $15,600 $15,292 $308
$18,022 $18,581 $15,762 $2,819
$64,437 $64.,316 $61,149 $3,167
$66,500 $62,425 $60,943 $1,482
$31,590 $33,760 $33,489 $271
$2,263 $4,168 $3,537 $631
$100,353 $100,353 $97,969 $2,384
$236,811 $371,725 $363,533 $8,192
$236,811 $371,725 $363,533 $8,192
$1,776,178 $1,920,651 $1,890,030 $30,621
$812,115 $861,345 $861,274 $71
$410,210 $364,850 $363,055 $1,795
$122,887 $118,142 $104,152 $13,990
$1,345,212 $1,344,337 $1,328,481 $15,856
$1,033,020 $1,001,020 $1,000,756 $264
$464,650 $440,930 $440,361 $569
$44,704 $64,943 $55,178 $9,765
$1,542,374 $1,506,893 $1,496,295 $10,598
$32,470 $32,620 $32,615 $5
$8,820 $9,420 $9,363 $57
$27,906 $31,891 $29,463 $2,428
$69,196 $73,931 $71,441 $2,490
$2,956,782 $2,925,161 $2,896,217 $28,944
$51,000 $51,000 $50,995 $5
$51,000 $51,000 $50,995 $5
$52,585 $42,580 $41,834 $746
$18,325 $5,830 $5,270 $560
$3,566 $3,566 $2,582 $984
$74,476 $51,976 $49,686 $2,290
$0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0
$72,840 $72,840 $66.,866 $5,974
$72,840 $72,840 $66.,866 $5,974
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City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

General Fund
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Original Final From Final
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Recreation-Pool
Salaries $26,000 $26,510 $26,506 $4
Fringe Benefits $4,455 $4,535 $4,528 $7
Contractual/Material $25,080 $39,490 $37,013 $2,477
Total $55,535 $70,535 $68,047 $2,488
Recreation Parks
Salaries $27,205 $23,455 $22,034 $1,421
Fringe Benefits $2,640 $4,380 $4,348 $32
Contractual/Material $44,362 $33,282 $30,990 $2,292
Total $74,207 $61,117 $57,372 $3,745
Total Leisure Activities $277,058 $256,468 $241,971 $14,497
Community Environment
Code Enforcement
Salaries $45,390 $45,530 $45,526 $4
Fringe Benefits $17,300 $17,730 $17,619 $111
Contractual/Material $2,322 $1,735 $1,480 $255
Total Community Environme $65,012 $64,995 $64,625 $370
Basic Utilities
Finance Utility Billing
Salaries $70,165 $69,565 $69,534 $31
Fringe Benefits $32,070 $32,670 $31,986 $684
Contractual/Material $22,300 $22,300 $21,225 $1,075
Total Basic Utilities $124,535 $124,535 $122,745 $1,790
Transportation
Parking Enforcement
Salaries $4,120 $8,120 $7,281 $839
Fringe Benefits $710 $1,710 $1,317 $393
Contractual/Material $600 $600 $135 $465
Total Transportation $5,430 $10,430 $8,733 $1,697
Total Expenditures $5,255,995 $5,353,240 $5,275,316 $77,924
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditt  $277,425  $103,660  $452,250  $348,590
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers Out $235,000  $325,080  $325,000 $80
Total Other Financing Uses $235,000  $325,080  $325,000 $80
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources Over(Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $42,425 ($221,420) $127,250 $348,670
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $226,327 $226,327 $226,327
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $28,120 $28,120
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $268,752 $4,907 $325,457 $320,550
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Police & Fire Income Tax Levy Fund
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Local Taxes $878,500 $878,500 $869,540 ($8,960)
Intergovernmental Revenues $0 $0 $127,867 $127,867
Total Revenues $878,500 $878,500 $997.407 $118,907
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of Persons & Property
Police Services
Salaries $262,940 $347,760 $347,683 $77
Fringe Benefits $137,990 $117,580 $117,379 $201
Contractual/Material $41,680 $55.390 $53.785 $1,605
Total Police Services $442,610 $520,730 $518,847 $1,883
Fire Services
Salaries $279,935 $250,900 $250,790 $110
Fringe Benefits $122,530 $114,780 $114,593 $187
Contractual/Material $35,133 $36,243 $30,740 $5,503
Total Fire Services $437,598 $401,923 $396,123 $5,800
Total Expenditures $880,208 $922,653 $914,970 $7.683

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditt  ($1,708) ($44,153) $82,437 $126,590

Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $49,204 $49,204  $49,204
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $6,297 $6,297
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $47,496 $5.051 $125.344 $120,293
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Reconciliation of Budget Basisto GAAP Basis
The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operation for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from the GAAP basis to the budget basis are as follows:

Police &
General Fire Tax
Fund Fund
GAAP Basis $ 28,326 $ 49,973
Increase (Decrease)
Due to Revenues $ 662,483 $ 2,946

Due to Expenditures $ (446,159) $ 29,518
Due to Other Financing
sources and uses $ (117.400) $

Budget Basis S 127,250 3 82437
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GENERAL FUND
The General Fund is used to account for government resources not accounted for in any other fund. The
General Fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred
according to the City Charter and/or the general laws of the State of Ohio.

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds are established to account for revenues from specific sources which legally are
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. A description of those funds follows:

Major Special Revenue Funds:
Police and Fire Income Tax Levy - levy passed by voters in 1992 a 0.4% increase in income tax to fund
new hires and capital improvements for the Police and Fire divisions.

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds:

Airport Operation and Maintenance Fund - accounts for the operation and maintenance of the Urbana
Municipal Airport/Grimes Field. The revenue is primarily the sale of aviation fuel and hangar rental
income. The General Fund subsidizes the operation.

Street Maintenance and Repair Fund - accounts for the use of state-shared auto license taxes and
gasoline taxes as provided in the Ohio Revised Code. These taxes and other resources, including a General
Fund subsidy, may be used for general maintenance and repair of city streets, bridges, and traffic
equipment.

Oak Dale Cemetery Fund - accounts for all financial resources and their uses in operating and
maintaining the city's cemetery, excluding capital outlay.

State Highway Fund - accounts for the use of state-shared auto license taxes and gasoline taxes required
to be used in maintaining and repairing state highways within the municipal corporation.

Police and Fire Pension Levy - accounts for 0.6 mill property tax authorized by state statute for the
payment of current and past Police and Fire Pension liabilities.

Supplemental Investment Fund - accounts for 10% of the interest yielded from invested proceeds of the
sale of the city's natural gas line system. In 1989, this fund accumulated $150,000 of interest. Council
designated that this amount of interest shall remain in the fund and all excess interest earned on the gas
proceeds, from that point on, shall go to the General Fund. In compliance with Section 133.08 of the City
of Urbana Codified Ordinances, the fund shall receive the interest on the fund balance.

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Income Fund - accounts for revenue
generated by completed housing rehabilitation projects. The revenue received is primarily repayment of
loans issued to owners of rehabilitated properties and is used to finance other community development
projects.

Law Enforcement Fund - accounts for property confiscated and resold as provided by State law.
Mandatory Drug Fine Fund - accounts for mandatory court fine levied in all drug cases, and used for
drug investigations as provided by State law.

Indigent Drunk Drivers Fund - accounts for mandatory court fine levied in all drunk-driving cases, and
used for law enforcement as provided by State law.

Probation Grant Fund - a grant from the Ohio Department of Corrections to administer probation office
for municipal court.

Victims Advocate Fund - a grant from the Attorney General of Ohio to administer assisting victim of
crimes for municipal court.

D.A.R.E. Grant- A grant for Drug Abuse Resistance Education from the Attorney General of Ohio.

FAA Airport Plan Grant Fund — accounts for the receipts and expenditures of Federal Aviation
Administration grant and city monies for carrying out the Grimes Field Master Expansion Plan.
Community Development Block Grant Community Housing Improvement Program (CDBG CHIP)
- makes funds available to assist low and moderate income households for residents of the City of Urbana,
which has substandard housing occupied by low and moderate income families who can not afford the
costs of home repair and other related difficulties.

FY98 Formula Grant — State money for low and moderate income families for a sewer extension project.

Cemetery Trust Income Fund - accounts for income generated by investment of funds in Cemetery Trust
Principal Fund. The income must be used for perpetual care of the cemetery.

Fire Donation Trust Fund — accounts for donations designated for use by the city Fire Division.

Police Donation Trust Fund — accounts for donations designated for use by the city Police Division.
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City Beautification Trust Fund — accounts for donations designated for the purchase of trees and shrubs
to be planted on city property and right-of-way.

Mausoleum Trust Fund — accounts for 20% of total mausoleum sales to be used to maintain and build
mausoleums in Oak Dale Cemetery.

Fire Safety Council — accounts for donations designated for use by the city Fire Division to teach child-
related fire safety.

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
Capital Project Funds are established to account for the receipt and disbursement of resources for the
purpose of building or acquiring major capital assets.

Major Capital Project Funds:

Perpetual Investment Fund - accounts for the proceeds from the sale of the city's gas system. The
proceeds are currently restricted by ordinance to be retained and invested. The interest earned goes to the
General Fund.

Non-Major Capital Project Funds

Capital Improvement Fund - accounts for all financial resources, primarily twenty-five percent (25%) of
city income tax receipts, required by city ordinance to be used for acquisition or construction of equipment
and capital facilities, excluding those financed by the Water, Sewer, or Grant funds.

Police & Fire Capital Project Fund - accounts for 1/10% of additional police & fire equipment and/or
project needs.

Municipal Court Improvement Project - accounts for an additional $5.00 per case levied by the
Municipal Court Judge for court improvement needs.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations where the intention is to finance such operations
primarily through user charges. By state statute, Enterprise Funds cannot be profit making operations to
the extent of benefiting other operations of the city.

Water Revenue Fund - accounts for the operation of the waterworks distribution system and related
expenditures, including capital improvement and debt service. The operation is exclusively financed by
customer user charges.

Sewer Revenue Fund - accounts for the operation of the sanitary sewer system and wastewater treatment
plant and related expenditures, including capital improvements and debt service. The operation is financed
exclusively by customer user charges.

Composting & Mulching Fund - accounts for a $1.00 monthly charge on utility bills to finance the the
operation of the composting & mulching facility.

AGENCY FUNDS
Agency Funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of other parties.

Health Insurance Fund - accounts for city and employee contributions to be used specifically for the
city's health and life insurance programs and flexible benefits plan.

Airport Escrow Fund —accounts for the monies set aside for escrow on the airport runway realignment
project.

Champaign County Municipal Court Fund - accounts for the fines and costs that the court has on record
to be disbursed to the agencies.
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CITY OF URBANA
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NON MAJOR FUNDS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2003

ASSETS

Pooled Cash & Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowance):

Accounts

Property Tax

Income

Other
Interfund Receivable
Due from other Funds
Due from other Governments
Inventory
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued:

Salaries
Workers' Compensation
Vacation & Sick Leave
Pension
Deferred Revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Fund Balances (Deficits):
Reserved for Inventory
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved, Reported in:
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Total Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Fund Balance,
& Other Credits

VICTIMS FAA CDBG
AIRPORT STREET STATE CEMETERY P&F SUPPLE. LAW DRUG INDIGENT ~ PROBATION ~ADVOCATE  AIRPORT CHIP
FUND FUND HIGHWAY FUND PENSION INVEST. CDBG ENFORCE FINE DRIVER GRANTS GRANT GRANT GRANT
$ 16499 $ 28984 $ 3604 $ 12644 $ 20654 $ 317,999 $ 212549 43373 $ 214 $ 51796 $ 20686 $ 658 $ 17,398 $ 102,823
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -3 - $ -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ 125077 $ -8 - $ -3 -8 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -3 - $ -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 485 $ 177,624 $ -3 -8 -3 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -3 - $ -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -3 - $ -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ 241,516 $ - $ - $ -8 -8 - $ -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ 8306 $ 29,003 $ - $ -8 -8 ) -8 -8 -8 - 0% 607 $ -8 - $ -
$ 24805 $ 299593 $ 3604 $ 12644 $ 145731 $ 322855 $ 390173 $ 43373 $ 214 $ 51796 $ 30293 $ 658 $ 17,308 $ 102,823
$ 2480 $ 13475 $ - $ 3542 % -8 -8 -8 -8 -3 1500 $ 9 $ - s 244 $ -
$ - $ 19491 $ - % 382 % -8 - - $ -8 -8 - $ 22718 $ 727 % - $ -
$ - $ 15823 $ - % 1770 % -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 - $ 180 $ -8 - $ -
$ - $ 13,2292 $ - $ 2,088 $ -8 -8 - $ - 8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ 399 $ -8 817 $ -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 - % 475 % -8 - $ -
$ - $ 162,244 $ - $ - $ 119600 $ - § 153533  § - % - % -3 -8 -8 - $ -
$ 2480 $ 228324 $ -~ $ 12039 $ 119600 $ -~ § 153533 § I B 1500 $ 4642 $ 727 S 244 $ -
$ 8306 $ 29,003 $ - $ -8 -8 - -8 - 0% -8 - % 607 $ -8 - $ -
$ 515 $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -8 406 $ -3 -8 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$ 13504 $ 42176 $ 3,604 $ 605 $ 26131 $ 322855 $ 236234 $ 43373 $ 214 $ 50296 $ 25044 S (69 $ 17,154 $ 102,823
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 -3 - $ -3 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
$_ 22325 $ 71269 $__ 3,604 $ 605 $ 26,131 $ 322,855 $ 236640 $ 43373 $ 214 $ 50296 $ 25651 § (69 $ 17,154 $_ 102,823
$ 22325 $ 71269 $ 3604 $ 605 $ 26131 $ 322,855 $ 236640 $ 43373 $ 214 $ 50296 $ 25651 $ (69) $ 17,154 $ 102,823
$ 24805 $ 299593 $ 3,604 $ 12644 _$ 145731 $ 322855 $ 390,173 43373 $ 214 $ 51,796 $ 30293 _$ 658 $ 17,398 $ 102,823
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CITY OF URBANA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NON MAJOR FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31,2003

ASSETS

Pooled Cash & Investments
Receivables (Net of Allowance):

Accounts

Property Tax

Income

Other
Interfund Receivable
Due from other Funds
Due from other Governments
Inventory
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued:

Salaries
Workers' Compensation
Vacation & Sick Leave
Pension
Deferred Revenues
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Restricted for:
Inventory
Encumberance
Unreserved, Reported in:
Special Revenue Funds
Capital Project Funds
Total Fund Balance
Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Fund Balance,
& Other Credits

CAPITAL CAPITAL
CEMETERY FIRE FIRE POLICE CITY IMPROVEMENT  POLICE & FIRE MUNICIPAL
FORMULA DARE TRUST DONATION SAFETY DONATION BEAUTIFICATION MAUSOLEUM EFUND EFUND COURT
GRANT GRANT INCOME TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST PROJECT TOTAL
$ 2,682 $ - $ 47,661 $ 30,102 $ 5,316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ 67,729 $ 55,335 $ 292,314 $ 1,443,470
$ -

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,650 $ 7,650
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 125,077
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 127,116 $ 50,846 $ - $ 177,962
$ - $ - $ 841 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 183,321
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 67,059 $ - $ - $ 308,575
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 38,006
$ 2,682 $ - $ 48502 $ 30.102 $ 5316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ 261,904 $ 106,181 $ 299,964 $ 2,284,061
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,171 $ - $ 134,131 $ 162,552
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,673 $ 27,991
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,396 $ 20,869
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 15,380
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 341 $ 5,632
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 435377
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 7,171 $ - $ 137,541 $ 667,801
$ - $ - $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - - $ 38,006
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 55,263 $ - $ - $ 56,184

$ -
$ 2,682 $ - $ 48502 $ 30,102 $ 5,316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,053,996
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 199,470 $ 106,181 $ 162,423 $ 468,074
$ 2,682 $ - $ 48502 $ 30,102 $ 5316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ 254,733 $ 106,181 $ 162,423 $ 1,522,070
$ 2,682 $ - $ 48,502 $ 30,102 $ 5,316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ 254,733 $ 106,181 $ 162,423 $ 1,616,260
$ 2,682 $ - $ 48,502 $ 30,102 $ 5,316 $ 1,850 $ 25,315 $ 56,285 $ 261,904 $ 106,181 $ 299,964 $ 2,284,061
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CITY OF URBANA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - NON MAJOR FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

VICTIMS FAA CDBG
AIRPORT STREET STATE CEMETERY P&F SUPPLE. LAW DRUG INDIGENT PROBATION ADVOCATE AIRPORT CHIP
FUND FUND HIGHWAY FUND PENSION INVEST. CDBG ENFORCE FINE DRIVER GRANT GRANT GRANT GRANT
REVENUES
Income Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -8 -8 - 8 -8 - $ - $ - $ -
Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 93389 $ -3 -3 -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
State Levied Shared Taxes $ - $ 415,870 $ 31,893 $ - $ 11,035 $ -8 - $ - $ -3 - $ 47,039 $ 12,333 $ 25,087 $ 268,629
Charges for Services $ 91,202 $ - $ - $ 91,838 $ - 8 -3 -3 -8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
Fines & Forfeitures $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -8 - 8 - $ 4541  $ 1122 $ 8,844 $ 36,284 $ - $ - $ -
Miscellaneous including Interest $ 60,650 $ 5,573 $ - $ 135 $ -8 8567 $ 66,031 $ - $ - % -8 - $ - $ 20,000 $ 72,622
TOTAL REVENUES $ 151,852 $ 421,443 $ 31,893 $ 91,973 $ 104,424 $ 8567 $ 66,031 $ 4,541 $ 1122 $ 8,844 $ 83323 $ 12,333 $ 45,087 $ 341,251
EXPENDITURES (CURRENT)
Public Safety $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -3 - $ 6,033 $ 1175 $ 30,009 $ 54,439 $ 14,312 $ - $ -
Health $ - $ - $ - $ 168,454 $ -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 -8 - $ - $ - $ -
Community Development $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 - $ 75699 $ - $ - % - 8 - $ - $ - $ 243,591
Transportation $ 152,094 $ 659,210 $ - $ - $ - 8 -8 - $ - $ -8 -8 - $ - $ 53,034 $ -
General Government $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2590 $ -3 -3 -8 - 8 -8 - $ - $ - $ -
Capital Outlays $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -3 -3 -8 - 8 -8 - $ - $ - $ -
Debt Service : Principal $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 -3 -8 - 8 -8 - $ - $ - $ -
Interest $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 -8 - $ -8 - $ - $ - $ -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 152,094 $ 659,210 $ - $ 168,454 $ 2590 $ - $ 75699 $ 6,033 $ 1175 $ 30,009 $ 54,439 $ 14,312 $ 53,034 $ 243,591
Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures $  (242)  $(237,767) $ 31,893 $ (76481) $ 101,834 $ 8567 $ (9668 $ (1492) $  (53) $  (21,165) $ 28884 $  (1,979) $ (7.947) $ 97,660
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Operating Transfer In $ - $ 273,637 $ - $ 80,000 $ - $ -3 -3 - 8 -3 - 8 - $ - $ - $ -
Operating Transfer Out $ - $ - $ (28,637) $ - $ (117,400) $ - 8 - $ -3 -8 - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES) $ - $ 273,637 $ (28,637) $ 80,000 $ (117,400) $ - 8 - $ - $ -3 - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues & Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures & Uses $ (242 $ 35870 $ 3256 $ 3,519 $ (15566) $ 8567 S (9668) $ (1492) $ (53 $_ (21,165) $ 28884 $  (1,979) $ (7,947) $__ 97,660
FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1 $ 22567 $ 35,399 $ 348 $ (2914) $ 41,697 $ 314288 $ 246,308 $ 44,865 $ 267 $ 71,461 $ (3,233 $ 1,910 $ 25101 $ 5,163
FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 $ 22,325 $ 71,269 $ 3,604 $ 605 $ 26131 $ 322,855 $ 236,640 $ 43,373 $ 214 $ 50,296 $ 25,651 $ (69) $ 17,154 $ 102,823
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CITY OF URBANA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - NON MAJOR FUNDS
FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003

CEMETERY FIRE FIRE POLICE CITY CAPITAL CAPITAL MUNICIPAL
FORMULA DARE TRUST DONATION SAFETY DONATION BEAUTIFICATION MAUSOLEUM IMPROVEMENT  POLICE & FIRE COURT
GRANT GRANT INCOME TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST TRUST FUND FUND PROJECT TOTAL
REVENUES
Income Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 722,162 $ 288,865 $ - $ 1,011,027
Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 93,389
State Levied Shared Taxes $ 30,000 $ 326 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 67,059 $ - $ - $ 909,271
Charges for Services $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 5,877 $ - $ - $ - $ 188,917
Fines & Forfeitures $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 99,996 $ 150,787
Miscellaneous including Interest $ - $ - $ 1,428 $ 16,634 $ 600 $ - $ 10,150 $ - $ 57,431 $ - $ 3,666 $ 323,487
TOTAL REVENUES $ 30,000 $ 326 $ 1,428 $ 16,634 $ 600 $ - $ 10,150 $ 5,877 $ 846,652 $ 288,865 $ 103,662 $ 2,676,878
EXPENDITURES (CURRENT)
Public Safety $ - $ 7,917 $ - $ 5,237 $ 1,303 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 120,425
Health $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 168,454
Community Development $ 27,318 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 346,608
Transportation $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 864,338
General Government $ - $ - $ 3,012 $ - $ - $ - $ 487 $ 2,750 $ 94,362 $ - $ 43,182 $ 146,383
Capital Outlays $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 734,787 $ - $ 137,321 $ 872,108
Debt Service : Principal $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 157,780 $ 15,125 $ 172,905
Interest $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 134,587 $ 14,954 $ 149,541
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 27,318 $ 7,917 $ 3,012 $ 5,237 $ 1,303 $ - $ 487 $ 2,750 $ 829,149 $ 292,367 $ 210,582 $ 2,840,762
Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures $ 268 #$ (7591 $  (1584) $ 11,397 $ (703 $ - $ 9,663 $ 3,127 $ 17,503 $ (3502) $  (106920) $ (163,884)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Operating Transfer In 353,637

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ - $ $ $
Operating Transfer Out $ - #S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (50,000) $ - $ - $  (196,037)
TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ (50,000) $ $ $ 157,600

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues & Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures & Uses $ 2682 #$ (/591) $  (1584) $ 11397 $ (703 $ -5 0663 $ 3127 $__ (32497) § (3502) $ (1069200 $___ (6,284)

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1 $ - #$ 7591 $ 50086 $ 18705 $ 6019 $ 1850 $ 15652  $ 53,158 $ 287,230 $ 109683 $ 269,343 $ 1,622,544
$ - $ -

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31 $ 2682 S ~ $_ 48502 $ 30,102 $ 5316 $ 1850 § 25315 § 56285 $ 254733 $ 106181 $ 162,423 $ 1,616,260
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CITY OF URBANA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS - ALL FIDUCIARY FUNDS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

HEALTH ESCROW MUNICIPAL AGENCY
INSURANCE FUNDS COURT TOTAL
ASSETS:

Restricted Cash $18,555 $104,964 $118,136 $241,655
TOTAL ASSETS $18,555 $104,964 $118,136 $241,655

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payables $ - $ 1,599 $ - $ 1,599
Payable from Restricted Assets ~ $18,555 $103,365 $118,136 $240,056
TOTAL LIABILITIES $18,555 $104,964 $118,136 $241,655
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City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Street Maintenance Fund Variance
Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Intergovernmental Revenues $382,000 $382,000 $397,722 $15,722
Miscellaneous & Reimbursements $ 82500 $ 82,500 $112,406 $ 29,906
Total Revenues $464,500 $464,500 $510,128 $ 45,628
Expenditures:
Transportation
Salaries $361,450 $376,110 $375868 $ 242
Fringe Benefits $166,650 $172,350 $171,600 $ 750
Contractual/Material $152,733 $192,102 $181,105 $ 10,997
Total Transportation $680,833 $740,562 $728573 $ 11,989
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi Hitt $ 57,617
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In $260,000 $290,000 $245,000 $(45,000)
Total Other Financing Sources  $260,000 $290,000 $245,000 $(45,000)
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources Over(Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Use: $ 43,667 $ 13,938 $ 26,555 $ 12,617
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 2428 $ 2428 $ 2,428
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ 10377 $10,377
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 46,095 $ 16366 $ 18,606 2.240

City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance
State Highway Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Intergovernmental $ 32,000 $ 32,000 $ 31,893 $ (107)
Total Revenues $ 32000 $ 32,000 $ 31,893 $ (107)
Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfer Out $ 33,000 $ 31,000 $ 28636 $ 2,364
Total Other Uses $ 33,000 $ 31,000 $ 28636 $ 2,364
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (1,000) $ 1000 $ 3257 $ 2,257
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 348 $ 348 $ 348
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ (652) $ 1348 $ 3605 $ 2,257
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City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Airport Operation & Maintenance Fund Variance
Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Charges for Service $105,000 $105,000 $ 91,201 $(13,799)
Miscellaneous & Reimbursements $ 55,000 $ 55,000 $ 60650 $ 5,650
Total Revenues $160,000 $160,000 $151,851 $ (8,149)
Expenditures:
Transportation
Salaries $ 15340 $ 15,340 $ 14961 $ 379
Contractual/Material $139,040 $134,080 $129,412 $ 4,668
Capital Outlays $ - $ 14900 $ 14425 $ 475
Total Transportation $154,380 $164,320 $158,798 $ 5,522
Total Expenditures $154,380 $164,320 $158,798 $ 5,522
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ 5,620 $ (4,320) $ (6,947) $ (2,627)
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 23,446 $ 23,446 $ 23,446
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ 2994 $ 2994
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 29,066 $ 19,126 $ 13505 $ (5.621)
City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds

For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Oak Dale Cemetery Fund Variance

Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Charges for Service $102,500 $102,500 $ 91,838 $(10,662)
Miscellaneous & Reimbursements $ 500 $ 500 $ 135 $  (365)
Total Revenues $103,000 $103,000 $ 91,973 $(11,027)
Expenditures:
Health
Salaries $ 72285 $ 74,705 $ 71,811 $ 2,894
Fringe Benefits $ 32280 $ 32,295 $ 31,827 $ 468
Contractual/Material $ 60375 $ 67,563 $ 63,709 $ 3,854
Total Health $164,940 $174563 $167.347 $ 7,216
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (61,940) $ (71,563) $ (75,374) $ (3.811)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers In $ 65,000 $ 65000 $ 80,000 $ 15,000
Total Other Financing Sources $ 65,000 $ 65,000 $ 80.000 $ 15,000
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources Over(Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ 3,060 $ (6,563) $ 4,626 $ 11,189
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 8018 $ 8,018 $ 8,018 $ -
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ 1404 $ 1,404
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 11078 $ 1455 $ 11240 $ 9,785
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Police and Fire Pension Levy Fur Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Local Taxes $119,000 $119,000 $122,023 $ 3,023
Total Revenues $119,000 $119,000 $122,023 $ 3,023
Expenditures:
General Government $ 2100 $ 2600 $ 259 $ 10
Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfer Out $122,900 $117,400 $117,400 $ -
Total Expenditures & Uses $125000 $120,000 $119990 $ 10
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (6,000) $ (1,000) $ 2,033 $ 3,033
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 18,621 $ 18,621 $ 18,621
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 12621 $ 17621 $ 20,654 $ 3,033
City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance
Supplemental Investment Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Interest Income $ 5500 $ 5500 $ 12,300 $ 6,800
Total Revenues $ 5500 $ 5500 $ 12,300 $ 6,800
Other Financing Uses
Operating Transfer Out $ - $ - $ - 8 -
Total Other Uses $ - $ - $ - $ -
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ 5500 $ 5500 $ 12,300 $ 6,800
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $302,649 $302,649 $302,649
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $308,149 $308,149 $314949 $ 6,800
City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance
CDBG Program Income Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Miscellaneous $130,800 $130,800 $ 66,188 $(64,612)
Total Revenues $130,800 $130,800 $ 66,188 $(64,612)
Expenditures:
Community Environment $ 18,705 $129449 $ 75,699 $ 53,750
Total Expenditures $ 18,705 $129449 $ 75,699 $ 53,750
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $112,095 $ 1351 $ (9,511) $(10,862)
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $208,928 $208,928 $208,928
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ 406 $ 406
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $321,023 $210,279 $199,011 $(11,268)
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Cemetery Trust Income Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Interest Income $ 3600 $ 3600 $ 2424 $ (1,176)
Total Revenues $ 3600 $ 3600 $ 2424 $ (1,176)
Expenditures
General Government $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 3012 $ 1988
Total Expenditures $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 3012 $ 1988
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (1,400) $ (1,400) $ (588) $ 812
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 48,228 $ 48,228 $ 48,228
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 46828 $ 46828 $ 47640 $ 812
City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003
Variance
Fire Donation Trust Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Miscellaneous Donations $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 16,634 $14,634
Total Revenues $ 2000 $ 2000 $ 16,634 $14634
Expenditures:
Public Safety $ 20414 $ 20414 $ 6,001 $ 14413
Total Expenditures $ 20414 $ 20414 $ 6,001 $14413
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (18,414) $ (18,414) $ 10,633 $ 29,047
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 19,469 $ 19,469 $ 19,469
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ 859 $ 859
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 1055 $ 1,055 $ 29,243 $ 28,188
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance

Fire Safety Council Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Miscellaneous Donations $ 300 $ 300 $ 600 $ 300
Total Revenues $ 300 $ 300 $ 600 $ 300

Expenditures

Public Safety $ - $ 500 $ 1303 $ 3,697
Total Expenditures $ - $ 500 $ 1303 $ 3,697

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ 300 $ (4700) $ (703) $ 3,997

Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 6,019 $ 6,019 $ 6,019
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 6319 $ 1319 $ 5316 $ 3,997

City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Variance
Police Donation Trust Fund Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Miscellaneous Donations $ 300 $ 300 $ - $ (300)
Total Revenues $ 300 $ 300 $ - $ (300)
Expenditures:
Public Safety $ 1500 $ 1500 $ - $ 1,500
Total Expenditures $ 1500 $ 1500 $ - $ 1,500
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendi $ (1,200) $ (1,200) $ - $ 1,200
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $ 1850 $ 1,850 $ 1,850
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $ - $ -
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $ 650 $ 650 $ 1850 $ 1,200
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City of Urbana, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis

Non-Major Capital Project Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Capital Improvement Fund Variance
Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget

Local Taxes $732,000 $732,000 $724,617 ($7,383)

Intergovernmental $ 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 3,478 ($71,522)

Miscellaneous $45,500  $45,500  $57,431 $11,931

Total Revenues $852,500 $852,500 $785,526  ($66,974)
Expenditures:
General Government $114,000  $96,000  $94,362 $1,638
Capital Outlays $565,651 $828,046 $761,609 $66,437
Total Expenditures $679,651 $924,046 $855,971 $68.075
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendil $172,849  ($71,546) ($70,445) $1,101
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers Out $0  $50,000  $50,000 $0
Total Other Financing Uses $0  $50,000 $50,000 $0
Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources Over(Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses  $172,849 ($121,546) ($120,445) $1,101
Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $188,174 $188,174 $188,174
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $62,434 $62,434
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $361.023 $66.628 $5.295 ($61.333)
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City of Urbana, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary(Non-GAAP) Basis
Non-Major Capital Project Funds
For Year Ended December 31, 2003

Police & Fire Tax Levy Capital Improvement Fund Variance
Original Final From Final
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual Budget
Local Taxes $338,000 $338,000 $289,847 ($48,153)
Total Revenues $338,000 $338,000 $289,847 ($48,153)
Expenditures:
Capital Outlays $221,895 $306,000 $270,712 $35,288
Total Expenditures $221,895 $306,000 $270,712 $35,288

Excess of Revenues Over/(Under) Expendit $116,105 $32,000 $19,135 ($12,865)

Fund Balance January 1, 2003 $4,797 $4,797 $4,797
Encumbrances December 31, 2003 $0 $0
Fund Balance December 31, 2003 $120.902 $36.797 $23.932 ($12.865)
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES BY FUNCTION

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS (A)

Table 1

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Income Tax $2,934,621 $3,108,389 $3,333,666 $3,693,326 $3,787,651 $3,931,531 $4,127,995 $4,048,812 $4,053,078 $4,044,104
Property Tax $343,804 $409,144 $427,861 $435,365 $475,660 $511,939 $542,760 $563,089 $471,537 $520,599
Intergovernmental $1,503,068 $1,282,358 $1,500,178 $1,414,839 $1,388,068 $1,486,316 $1,420,217 $4,525,529 $1,897,207 $2,290,560
Charges for Services $237,220 $373,723 $396,985 $387,117 $392,165 $406,296 $482,635 $418,819 $611,794  $541,713
Fees, Licenses, & Permits $390,925 $518,072 $469,326 $462,298 $533,904 $551,858 $535,660 $677,946  $742,169 $706,361
Other $417,943 $720,703 $421,441 $367,413 $449,799 $1,066,855 $2,579,529 $563,245 $391,687 $633,085
TOTAL $5,827,581 $6,412,389 $6,549,457 $6,760,358 $7,027,247 $7,954,795 $9.688,796 $10,797.440 $8,167.472 $8,736,422
Table 2
CITY OF URBANA, OHIO
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS (A)
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
General Government $797,158 $995,019 $1,049,036 $982,123 $1,087,948 $1,056,782 $1,513,914 $1,263,511 $3,971,066 $4,260,049
Public Safety $2,587,245 $2,708,685 $2,922,526 $3,314,674 $3,523,250 $3,541,050 $3,981,491 $4,109,908 $211,091 $219,449
Health $206,906 $188,447 $153,718 $201,760 $220,508 $217,898 $217,155 $223,178 $287,733  $239,977
Recreation $232,589 $238,615 $246,064 $275,702 $317,074 $298,938 $314,165 $299,809 $431,608 $420,659
Community Development $218,772 $113,301 $115,503 $88,545 $132,367 $299,842 $421,279 $720,536  $125,902 $122,403
Basic Utility Services $72,795 $79,863 $79,151 $88,031 $94,650 $93,270 $102,454 $117,721  $800,983 $874,774
Transportation $1,316,190 $634,996 $647,013 $686,095 $699,741 $923,339 $2,422,271 $3,715,914 $1,295,634 $1,282,542
Capital Outlays $1,106,434 $2,361,803 $2,938,179 $1,744,051 $591,223 $656,501 $627,233 $905,032 $617,827 $872,108
Debt Service:
Principal $50,000 $58,334 $180,000 $97,500 $165,083 $177,083 $173,333 $191,667 $182,917 $172,905
Interest $8,833 $22,332 $188,527 $203,689 $209,030 $199,594 $200,334 $217,792 $141,261  $149,541
TOTAL $6,596,922 $7.401,395 $8,519,717 $7.682,170 $7.040.874 $7.464,297 $9.973,629 $11,765,068 $8,066,022 $8,614,407

Source: City of Urbana Finance Department

(A) Includes General, Special Revenue and Capital Improvement funds.
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Table 3

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

TANGIBLE PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES Total Outstanding
Collections Delinquent
asa%  Outstanding Taxes as a %
Tax Collection Current Total Tax of Current  Delinquent of Current
Year Year Levy Collections Levy Taxes Levy
2002 2003 $141,688 $142,519 100.59% $15,916 11.23%
2001 2002 $151,555 $136,180 89.86% $16,747 11.05%
2000 2001 $186,282 $130,821 70.23% $51,960 27.89%
1999 2000 $142,787 $128,740 90.16% $22,047 15.44%
1998 1999 $134,632 $136,594 101.46% $8,278 6.15%
1997 1998 $110,098 $109,837 99.76% $4,952 4.50%
1996 1997 $122,626 $114,721 93.55% $14,760 12.04%
1995 1996 $103,973 $112,112 107.83% $6,947 6.68%
1994 1995 $96,363 $118,386 122.85% $24,597 25.53%
1993 1994 $108,062 $112,831 104.41% $7,292 6.75%

Source: Champaign County Auditor
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REAL PROPERTY TAXES

2001

2000

1999

1998

1997

1996

1995

1994

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

PROPERTY TAXES LEVIED AND COLLECTED FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

Table 3
Continued

Total Outstanding
Collections Delinquent
asa% Outstanding Taxes as a %
Collection Current Total Tax State Credit of Current Delinquent of Current
Year Levy Collections  to Taxpayers Levy Taxes Levy
2004 $956,927 N/A $379,540 N/A N/A N/A
2003 $944,236 $509,260 $378,207 93.99% $30,437 3.22%
2002 $939,137 $480,905 $378,739 91.54% $35,815 3.81%
2001 $873,200 $432,195 $302,384 84.12% $25,355 2.90%
2000 $792,121 $443,289 $298,476 93.64% $23,552 2.97%
1999 $804,012 $429,093 $307,730 91.64% $21,980 2.73%
1998 $625,920 $366,381 $204,093 91.14% $21,486 3.43%
1997 $606,730 $369,462 $199,624 93.80% $21,350 3.52%
1996 $542,827 $357,748 $149,874 93.51% $19,733 3.64%
1995 $492,577 $320,898 $135,981 92.75% $18,068 3.67%

Source: Champaign County Auditor, Champaign County Treasurer
N/A - Information will not be available until end of current year.
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Tax
Year
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

1995

1994

Collection
Year
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997

1996

1995

ASSESSED VALUE AND CURRENT VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

Table 4

REAL PROPERTY VALUES TANGIBLE PERSONAL VALUES (A) PUBLIC UTILITIES VALUES TOTAL VALUES

Current Current Current Current

Assessed Market Percent Assessed Market Percent Assessed Market Percent Assessed Market
$150,065,090 $428,757,400 35.00% $44,391,695 $193,007,370 23.00% $7,927,240 $22,649,250 35.00% $202,384,025 $644,414,020
$148,785,330 $425,100,943 35.00% $43,198,296 $172,793,184 25.00% $7,103,070 $20,494,490 35.00% $199,086,696 $618,388,617
$148,406,200 $424,017,714 35.00% $42,780,799 $171,123,196 25.00% $6,655,240 $19,014,971 35.00% $197,842,239 $614,155,881
$128,235,800 $366,388,000 35.00% $54,645,186 $218,580,744 25.00% $8,269,520 $23,627,200 35.00% $191,150,506 $608,595,944
$125,725,570 $359,215,910 35.00% $41,934,055 $167,736,220 25.00% $9,107,330 $26,020,940 35.00% $176,766,955 $552,973,070
$126,930,830 $362,659,510 35.00% $40,942,941 $163,771,764 25.00% $8,419,140 $24,054,690 35.00% $176,292,911 $550,485,964
$109,268,490 $321,195,690 34.00% $33,212,207 $132,848,828 25.00% $8,549,460 $24,427,030 35.00% $151,030,157 $478,471,548
$106,508,690 $304,310,543 35.00% $37,927,880 $151,711,520 25.00% $7,673,410 $21,924,029 35.00% $152,109,980 $477,946,092
$104,484,830 $298,528,086 35.00% $32,741,313 $136,422,138 24.00% $7,886,642 $22,533,263 35.00% $145,112,785 $457,483,486
$91,520,860 $261,488,170 35.00% $30,382,922 $121,531,690 25.00% $8,494,180 $24,269,090 35.00% $130,397,962 $407,288,950

Source: Champaign County Auditor

(A) - Tangible Personal Property Values are assessed and collected in the same year.
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Table 5

PROPERTY TAX RATES AND TAX LEVIES
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
(per $1,000 of assessed value)

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

Effective Rates

Fiscal P&F Total Mental County Resident.

Year Operating Pension City County Township School JVS Health Library Total & Agri. Other
2003 2.70 0.60 3.30 8.90 0.10 58.30 2.00 0.70 0.40 73.70 40.15 50.09
2002 2.70 0.60 3.30 8.90 0.10 58.30 2.00 0.70 0.40 73.70 40.15 49.50
2001 2.70 0.60 3.30 8.90 0.10 58.30 2.00 0.70 0.40 73.70 40.14 49.08
2000 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 58.30 2.00 0.70 0.40 72.20 43.16 51.37
1999 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 37.24 45.13
1998 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 36.83 44.86
1997 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 41.18 47.03
1996 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 41.17 46.93
1995 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 40.08 45.55
1994 2.70 0.60 3.30 7.40 0.10 52.40 2.00 0.70 0.40 66.30 44.42 50.70

Source: Champaign County Auditor
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT COLLECTIONS

FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

Table 6

Ratio of
Beginning Current Total Collections Total
Fiscal Outstanding Assessments Assessments to Outstanding
Year Assessments Due Collected (A) Amount Due Assessments
2003 $86,153 $28,824 n/a n/a n/a
2002 $57,405 $29,384 $13,687 15.77% $81,127
2001 $40,416 $19,174 $3,087 5.18% $52,953
2000 $10,812 $23,829 $3,565 10.29% $36,210
1999 $5,464 $6,285 $2,741 23.33% $10,058
1998 $5,576 $1,583 $2,038 28.47% $5,286
1997 $4,841 $3,598 $3,524 43.62% $5,090
1996 $5,189 $4,838 $5,633 56.18% $4,554
1995 $2,653 $9,587 $7,728 63.14% $5,189
1994 $628 $6,329 $4,157 59.75% $2,653

Source: Champaign County Auditor
(A) - Assessments collected are collected the year after the assessments are made.
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Assessed Value
Gross Indebtedness $7,594,778

Less Exempt Debt:

Ohio Water Development Authority Loan $2,718,126

Ohio Public Work Commission Interest Free $761,652
Total Exempt Debt $3,479,778
Total Non-Exempt Debt $4,115,000

5-1/2% Limitation (A)

5-1/2% Unvoted Debt Limitation
Total Tax Non-Exempt Debt Outstanding

5-1/2% Debt Margin within Limitations

10-1/2% Limitation (A)

10-1/2% Unvoted Debt Limitation
Total Tax Non-Exempt Debt Outstanding

10-1/2% Debt Margin within Limitations

(A) - The Ohio Revised Code provides two limits on a municipality's
outstanding voted and/or unvoted debt based on the assessed property value.
The State General Assembly may amend these two limits from time to time.
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Table 7

$202,384,025

$11,131,121
$4,115,000

$7.016.121

$21,250,323
$4,115,000

$17,135,323



CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Assessed Net General

Jurisdiction Value (A) Bonded Debt
City of Urbana, Ohio $202,384,025 $4,115,000
Champaign County $672,244,328 $0
Urbana City Schools $267,352,020 $0
Urbana Township $56,387,255 $0
Salem Township $42,097,626 $0

Sources: Champaign County Auditor, Urbana Local School District,
City of Urbana, Urbana Township, and Salem Township

(A) Includes Real, Tangible Personal, and Public Utility Property.

(B) Based on Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2003
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(B)

Table 8

Net Tax
Percentage Supported

Overlapping Overall Debt
100% $3,193,000
30% $0
76% $0
72% $0
5% $0
$3,193,000




Table 9

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE
FOR GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL EXPENDITURES
FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

RATIO OF
(B) DEBT SERVICE
TOTAL TOTAL TO TOTAL
) ) DEBT GENERAL GENERAL
YEAR  PRINCIPAL  INTEREST SERVICE ~ EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES
2003 $172,905 $149,541 $322,446 $8,517,723 3.79%
2002 $182,917 $141,261 $324,178 $8,053,147 4.03%
2001 $191,667 $217,792 $409,459  $11,765,068 3.48%
2000 $173,333 $200,334 $373,667 $9,973,629 3.75%
1999 $177,083 $199,594 $376,677 $7,464,341 5.05%
1998 $165,083 $209,030 $374,113 $7,102,413 5.27%
1997 $97,500 $203,689 $301,189 $7,682,170 3.92%
1996 $180,000 $188,527 $368,527 $8,519,717 4.33%
1995 $58,334 $22,332 $80,666 $7,401,395 1.09%
1994 $50,000 $8,833 $58,833 $6,596,922 0.89%

Source: City of Urbana Finance Department

(A) - Does not include General Obligation Notes that will be retired
by the Water or Sewer Funds.
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Table 10

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

REVENUE BOND COVERAGE
WATER FUND REVENUE BOND FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

NET REVENUE DEBT SERVICE DEBT
GROSS (A) AVAILABLE REQUIREMENTS SERVICE
YEAR REVENUE EXPENSE FOR DEBT PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL COVERAGE
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998 All Mortgage Revenue Bonds refinanced and are General Obligation
1997
1996 " "
1995 " "
1994 $871,019 $665,016 $206,003 $55,000 $111,387 $166,387 1.24

Source: City of Urbana Finance Department

(A) - Total Expenses exclusive of depreciation, interest, and debt
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO Table 11

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

Median

Population Median Family Per Capita
Year Count (A) Age (A) Income (A Income (A)
2000 11,613 37.3 N/A N/A
1990 11,353 34.4 N/A $12,412
1980 10,762 315 $17,515 $6,558
1970 11,237 29.1 $10,103 $2,707
1960 10,461 30.6 $5,588 N/A
1950 9,335 N/A N/A N/A
1940 8,335 N/A N/A N/A

Public School Enroliment (B)

School Year Elementary High Total
2003-2004 1,310 1,043 2,353
2002-2003 1,325 1,057 2,382
2001-2002 1,324 1,047 2,371
2000-2001 1,296 1,059 2,355
1999-2000 1,355 1,023 2,378
1998-1999 1,390 1,049 2,439
1997-1998 1,345 1,014 2,359
1996-1997 1,373 1,036 2,409
1995-1996 1,399 1,148 2,547
1994-1995 1,478 1,100 2,578

UNEMPLOYMENT STATISTICS (C)

The following chart represents the ratio of estimated total unemployment of the
total labor force for Champaign County. Data specifically for Urbana is
unavailable.

Unemployment

Year Rate
2003 6.6%
2002 6.8%
2001 4.6%
2000 3.4%
1999 3.4%
1998 3.7%
1997 4.0%
1996 4.7%
1995 5.2%
1994 4.5%

(A) Source: U.S. Bureau of the Census
(B) Source: Urbana Board of Education
(C) Source: Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994

CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

CONSTRUCTION AND BANK DEPOSITS FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

RESIDENTIAL
UNITS
36
45
15
17
16
20
27
46
43
30

VALUE

$4,718,800
$4,718,000
$2,181,350
$1,699,400
$1,468,300
$2,380,220
$1,610,305
$6,004,000
$3,773,150
$3,810,347

COMMERCIAL

UNITS

N

O ~N~NDNBA~NOO

Source: City of Urbana, Building & Zoning Division

VALUE
$3,811,000
$3,206,000
$2,265,000
$3,141,500
$817,000
$1,410,000
$1,292,500
$3,080,000
$2,679,000
$4,161,700

(A) Source : Champaign National Bank, Citizens National Banks, People
Savings & Loans, Perpetual Federal Savings Bank and Fifth/Third National Bank.
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(A)
BANK

DEPOSITS

$663,612,806
$672,434,154
$634,253,907
$594,365,883
$563,145,287
$548,028,089
$509,331,832
$468,834,172
$449,851,163
$428,153,874

Table 12

ASSESSED
VALUE

$202,384,025
$199,086,696
$197,842,239
$191,150,506
$176,766,955
$176,292,911
$154,484,112
$152,287,302
$145,112,785
$130,565,904



CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS (PROPERTY TAXES)

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Table 13

Percent
2003 (A) of Total
Valuation Assessed
Taxpayer Type of Business Assessed Valuation

Dayton, Power & Light Co. Utility Service $3,116,620 1.54%
Champaign Telephone Co. Utility Service $2,458,710 1.21%
Allied Signal Inc. Manufacturing $2,416,250 1.19%
Eastern Retail Holdings Retail $2,038,980 1.01%
Fox River Paper Co. Manufacturing $1,408,990 0.70%
Rittal Corp Manufacturing $1,365,800 0.67%
WalMart Stores Inc. Retalil $933,820 0.46%
Schottenstein Trustees Development $773,860 0.38%
Settlers Ridge Manufacturing $756,640 0.37%
Health Care & Retirement Health Care $700,150 0.35%
Nationwide Health Health Care $683,250 0.34%
Pioneer Rural Electric Utility Service $673,970 0.33%
Fiber Sales Manufacturing $633,630 0.31%
Columbia Gas Utility Service $585,930 0.29%
SUBTOTAL $18,546,600 9.16%

ALL OTHER $183,837,425 90.84%

TOTAL $202,384,025 100.00%

SOURCE: Champaign County Auditor

(A) Includes Real, Personal and Utility Property
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

TOP TEN WITHHOLDING TAXPAYERS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Taxpayer
FL Aerospace/Grimes Div.
Rittal
Honda of America
Menasha Corp.
Urbana Board of Education
Howard Paper Mills
Siemen-Allis
Champaign County, Ohio
Mercy Health Systems

Urbana University

Type of Business

Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

Public School System
Manufacturing
Manufacturing

Local Government
Health Care

Private University

SUBTOTAL
ALL OTHER
TOTAL

SOURCE: City of Urbana Income Tax collection records.

78

Total
Payments

$627,391
$153,737
$151,539
$150,278
$137,065
$134,066
$120,035
$117,550
$115,999

$70,668

$1,778,328
$1,673,750

$3,452,078

Table 14

Percent
of all
With-

Holding

18.17%
4.45%
4.39%
4.35%
3.97%
3.88%
3.48%
3.41%
3.36%

2.05%
51.51%
48.49%

100.00%



CITY OF URBANA, OHIO

RATIO OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE
AND NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA FOR THE LAST TEN YEARS

YEAR
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994

Source: City of Urbana Finance Department

GROSS
BONDED
DEBT

$7,594,778
$9,135,999
$9,415,512
$9,579,527
$9,820,301
$10,127,526
$10,117,589
$9,425,566
$9,224,454
$5,438,864

NET
GENERAL
BONDED
DEBT (A)
$2,967,000
$3,193,000
$3,414,000
$3,655,000
$3,745,000
$3,973,000
$4,203,000
$3,573,000
$3,703,000

$238,000

RATIO OF
NET BONDED

DEBT TO

ASSESSED ASSESSED
VALUE POPULATION VALUE

$202,384,025 11,613 1.47%
$199,086,696 11,613 1.60%
$197,842,239 11,613 1.73%
$191,150,506 11,613 1.91%
$176,766,955 11,353 2.12%
$176,292,911 11,353 2.25%
$154,484,112 11,353 2.72%
$152,287,302 11,353 2.35%
$145,112,785 11,353 2.55%
$130,565,904 11,353 0.18%

Table 15

RATIO OF
NET BONDED
DEBT PER
CAPITA
255.49
274.95
293.98
314.73
329.87
349.95
370.21
314.72
326.17
20.96

(A) - Amount includes all General Obligation Debt not supported by Business-Like Activities for the City.
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CITY OF URBANA, OHIO Table 16

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003

Date of Incorporation: 1868

Type of Government: Mayor/Administrator/Council
Number of Employees:

Elected Officials: 10

Full-Time Employees: 98

Part-Time Employees: 53

Fire Protection:
Officers: 5
Firefighters: 15
Number of Runs: 263

Provides Emergency Medical Services:
Number of Paramedics: 20
Number of Emergency Squad Runs: 1,556

Police Protection:
Officers: 20
Calls for Service: 15,598

Miles of Street: 56.8

Municipal Water Department:
Number of Customers: 4,479
Average Daily Water Pumped: 1,960,000 Gallons
Total Water Pumped: 716,000,000 Gallons
Miles of Waterlines: 62.5

Municipal Wastewater Pollution Control:
Number of Customers: 4,386
Average Daily Treated: 1,712,700 Gallons
Total Wastewater Treated: 689,430,000 Gallons
Miles of Sanitary Sewerlines: 51.5
Miles of Storm Sewers: 21.5
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88 Fast Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140

Auditor of State Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
Betty Montgomery P 400.282.0370

Facsimile  614-466-4490

CITY OF URBANA

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Toubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JULY 27, 2004
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